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ITEHES
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OVERVIEW
For the year ended 31st March, 2013 (the “Year”), the Group’s

revenue was HK$544 million, representing a decrease of 28% as
compared with HK$752 million in the previous financial year.
Revenue from the hotel and entertainment business amounted
to HK$368 million (2012: HK$554 million), whereas revenue
from the financial services and property development business
amounted to HK$176 million (2012: HK$198 million).

The Group reported loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$28 million for the Year (2012: HK$145 million) and
basic loss per share of HKO0.62 cents (2012: HK3.24 cents).
The loss attributable to owners of the Company was mainly
due to a loss before taxation of HK$237 million (2012: a loss
before taxation of HK$356 million, which included a loss of
HK$145 million on revaluation of Grand Waldo Complex and
an one-off impairment loss on goodwill of HK$80 million)
from the Group’s 65% owned subsidiaries in Macau hotel
and entertainment business, which included a loss of HK$158
million on revaluation of Grand Waldo complex. The financial
sector generated a profit before taxation of HK$130 million
(2012: HK$141 million).

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Hotel and Entertainment Business
Industry Review

The hotel and entertainment market in Macau begins to show
signs of slowdown in growth in the second quarter of 2012.
Income from the gambling sector amounted to HK$306 billion
for the twelve months ended 31st March, 2013 (2012: HK$275
billion), representing an increase of 11% from the same period
last year. Macau’s gaming market is primarily dependent on
tourists. Tourist arrivals for the twelve months ended 31st
March, 2013 were 28.2 million (2012: 28.5 million). Of the
28.2 million visitors, 89% came from mainland China, Hong
Kong, and Taiwan. As at 31st March 2013, there were 28,125
hotels rooms (2012: 22,272) with the average occupancy rate of
79% (2012: 85%) and 35 casinos (2012: 34) with 5,749 gaming
tables (2012: 5,242) in Macau for the Year.
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Business Review

The Group’s hotel and entertainment business at Grand
Waldo complex in Macau is operated through its 65% owned
subsidiaries, Great China Company Limited (“Great China”) and
Grand Waldo Entertainment Limited (“GWE”). The revenue of
this segment for the Year amounted to HK$368 million (2012:
HK$554 million), accounting for 68% of the total revenue of
the Group. This business generated a loss before taxation of
HK$237 million, of which the Group shared 65%. The loss from
this segment included a loss on revaluation of the Grand Waldo
complex of HK$158 million (2012: HK$145 million). Excluding
that revaluation loss, the loss before taxation from this segment
would be narrowed down to HK$79 million. Depreciation
and amortization of prepaid lease payments for this segment
amounted to HK$135 million (2012: HK$137 million).

Substantial decrease in revenue of this segment was mainly
attributed to the Group ceasing to provide services to VIP table
games in Grand Waldo casino during the Year in response to
changing market demand and industry competition. This change
together with other favorable factors and more revenue from the
hotel business reduced the loss before taxation, excluding the
revaluation loss of HK$158 million on Grand Waldo complex,
suffered from the hotel and entertainment segment to HK$79
million as compared to the loss of HK$131 million, excluding
the revaluation loss of HK$145 million on Grand Waldo
complex and an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$80 million,

for the same period last year.

The casino at Grand Waldo complex is run by the license holder
Galaxy Casino S.A. As at 31st March, 2013, there were 27

gaming tables and 148 slot machines in the casino.

The Group’s hotel operations mainly comprised rental of 314
hotel rooms, food and beverage sale and other property rentals.
The average occupancy rate of the hotel for the Year was over

82% with an average daily room rate of HK$863.

On 4th May, 2013 the Group entered into agreements, through
its 65% owned subsidiaries, Great China together with its
subsidiaries and GWE, (collectively the “Disposal Group”)
which carried out hotel and entertainment operations, to
dispose of Grand Waldo complex and certain assets in Macau
to the subsidiaries of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited at a
consideration of HK$3,250 million (the “Proposed Disposal”).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 24th May 2013, it
is estimated that the Group would generate a gain before taxation
of approximately HK$311 million on the Proposed Disposal,
which is calculated with reference to the consideration less the
aggregate amount of the unaudited book value of the assets as
at 30th, September 2012 and the estimated related expenses to
be incurred. The actual gain or loss on the Proposed Disposal
will be calculated on the respective completion date. Upon
completion of the Proposed Disposal, the Group will cease all
operations and business of the Disposal Group. Please refer to

note 48 for further details.

Financial Services Business
Market Review

The global economic activities remain weak throughout the
Year, with the European sovereign debt crises, a slow recovery
in major global economies and staggering corporate earnings
growth. Against this backdrop, most investors were cautious
toward both investment and speculations in equity market.
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited traded an average
daily turnover of HK$56 billion for the Year, 15% lower than
the same period last year, despite the Hang Seng Index was up
by 8% to close at 22,300 at 31st March, 2013, compared to
that on 31st March, 2012. IPO fundraising activities in Hong
Kong recorded HK$88 billion for the Year, dropped by 65%, as

compared with the same period last year.

Business Review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the Year, the Group’s securities, futures and options
broking revenue, including underwriting and placing
commission, amounted to HK$43 million (2012: HK$64
million), accounting for 8% of total revenue. Of the HK$43
million, the Group’s underwriting and placing businesses
contributed revenue of HK$7 million (2012: HK$11 million).
The broking segment reported a profit of HK$2 million for the
Year (2012: HK$11 million). Decline in revenue and profit of
the broking segment for the Year was due to weak retail equity
market sentiment. As most investors were cautious toward both
investment and speculations in equity market, trading volume
and brokerage income were inevitably adversely affected. The
Group’s commission from brokerage products declined by 33%
to HK$33 million (2012: HK$49 million) reflecting lower
volumes as well as competitive market pressures. Nonetheless,
given the Group’s low cost structure and strong financial
position, the Group should benefit from any recovery in market

sentiment and volumes.
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The Group’s margin lending business remained relatively
stable. The interest income from margin financing amounted to
HK$115 million for the Year as compared to HK$123 million
in the previous financial year. This business contributed a
segmental profit of HK$114 million (2012: HK$119 million).
The Group’s margin loan book at the year end stood at
HK$1,427 million (2012: HK$1,442 million). No material

impairment loss on margin loans was made for the Year.

Money lending

The money lending vehicle which mainly engaged in the
provision of consumer and mortgage loans posted a profit of
HK$13 million (2012: HK$5 million), representing an increase
of 160%. The significant increase in profit was due to no
impairment loss on consumer loans was made for the Year (2012:

HK$4.5 million).

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance division continued to focus on
the provision of financial advisory services to listed issuers. It
completed 5 financial advisory assignments during the Year. This
business reported a segmental loss of HK$137,000 for the Year
(2012: HK$198,000). The loss was due to dramatic decline in

corporate finance activities in the market.

Investments

The investments division held properties and financial
instruments for the Group during the Year. For the year under
review, this division reported a loss of HK$74,000 (2012:
HKS$11 million), mainly attributable to a decrease in fair value of
financial instruments. As at 31st March, 2013, the Group held
a portfolio of equity and debt securities and convertible notes
with a total fair value of HK$54 million (2012: HK$69 million).
The Group’s investment strategy is to identify investments with
attractive returns and/or provide synergies with other business of

the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Outlook

The global economy remains gloomy given the recovery paces
in the United States and Europe are slow as evidenced by the
further quantitative easing measures implemented in various
countries. In particular, the sovereign debt crises in several
European countries will persist in the coming year, the global
economy will be affected by various uncertainties and the
recovery outlook will be far from optimistic. It is generally
anticipated that these developed countries will remain in a
period of low-growth in the coming several years. Under the
uncertainties around the globe, the Hong Kong stock market is

likely to trade within a range in the next twelve months.

The Group will continue to take a prudent approach when it
secks opportunities for sustainable growth and remains vigilant

on costs.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$3,375 million as at 31st March, 2013 (2012: HK$3,490
million), representing a decrease of HK$115 million, or 3% from
that of 31st March, 2012. The decrease was mainly attributed to
the loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$28 million and dividend payments of HK$89 million.

The Group’s net current assets as at 31st March, 2013 amounted
to HK$1,115 million (2012: HK$1,242 million) and the
liquidity of the Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio
(current assets/current liabilities) was 2.2 times (2012: 2.4
times). The Group’s cash on hand amounted to HK$214 million
as at 31st March, 2013 (2012: HK$184 million). As at 31st
March, 2013, the Group’s total bank borrowings amounted to
HK$333 million (2012: HK$502 million). Of this, HK$170
million is repayable within one year, and HK$163 million is
repayable after one year. As at 31st March, 2013, the Group had
unutilised banking facilities amounting to HK$1,533 million
(2012: HK$1,365 million) which were secured by charges over
clients’ pledged securities, certain Group’s properties as well as

corporate guarantees issued by the Company.
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The number of issued shares of the Company was 4,473,475,959
as at 31st March, 2013 (2012: 4,473,475,959).

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group’s gearing ratio (total
liabilities over equity attributable to owners of the Company)
was 0.36 time (2012: 0.39 time).

The business activities of the Group are not exposed to material
fluctuations in exchange rates as the majority of the transactions
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and MOP, which is
pegged to Hong Kong dollar.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the year end.

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group had capital commitments of
HK$379,000 in respect of the renovation of a property.

Charges on Group Assets

Investment properties, leasehold land, land and building, prepaid
lease payments and hotel complex of the Group with a carrying
amount of HK$2,524 million (2012: HK$2,750 million) were
pledged for banking facilities granted to the Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,

associates or jointly controlled entity completed during the Year.

Employee Information

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group had 624 (2012: 682)
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the Year was HK$88 million (2012: HK$93 million).
The Group provides employee benefits including mandatory
provident fund, contributions to the retirement benefits schemes
for the employees working in Macau, discretionary share options

and performance bonus for its staff.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the listed shares of the

Company.
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ITEHES
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited made various

amendments to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and renamed it to
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”). The CG Code
took effect on 1st April 2012.

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2013 with the CG Code except for the deviations

summarised as follows:

Code A.4.1

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
The non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for specific terms but subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company according

to the provisions of the Articles of Association.

Code A.6.7

Pursuant to Code A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors should
attend the general meetings of the Company. Two independent
non-executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 24th August, 2012 as they had

other important business engagements at that relevant time.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Group’s audited consolidated results for the year ended 31st
March, 2013 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the
Company.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2013
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 58, is the chairman of the
Company and founder of the Group. He is responsible for the
formulation of corporate strategy and the future direction of the
Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible for overseeing the credit
operation of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses over 19 years of
experience in the securities and real estate industries in Hong

Kong and Taiwan.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 67, is the deputy chairman
of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy and future direction of the Group, and is
responsible for the overall management of the Group. Mr. Cham
possesses over 45 years of experience in the banking, financial,
securities and real estate industries. Before joining the Group in
September, 1991, he held senior executive positions in various

international banks.

Mr. SHUM Kin Wai, Frankie, aged 67, is the managing
director and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the
formulation of corporate strategy, and for the dealing, settlement
and credit operations of the Group. Mr. Shum has been
responsible for the dealing operations for securities trading in
four local securities firms during different period since 1971. Mr.

Shum has over 40 years of experience in the securities business.

Mr. HUNG Sui Kwan, aged 44, was appointed as an executive
director and CEO of the Company on 28th April 2011 and is
responsible for the overall operation and business development
of the Group. During the years from 2002 to April 2011,
Mr. Hung is the company secretary of the Company and
was responsible for executing capital market and merger and
acquisition activities of the Group. He is also a licensed person
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance for regulated activity
“advising on corporate finance”. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 886), issued shares of which were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Hung
holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Hung is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon Man, chairman of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS - continued
Executive Directors — continued

Mr. LUNG Hon Lui, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 28th April 2011. He has over 22
years of experience in management and operation of hotel and
gaming industry in Macau. He served as the general manager of
the Grand Waldo Complex since its commencement of business
in 20006, responsible for overseeing the whole operation at Grand
Waldo Complex. He is the Life Fellow Member of both The
Institute of Management Specialists and Professional Business

and Technical Management of United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Chun Ning, Wilfred, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 16th May, 2002. He is
currently an executive director of Chong Hing Bank Limited
who is in charge of the securities business of Chong Hing Bank
Limited and an independent non-executive director of S.A.S.
Dragon Holdings Limited whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in economics from

the University of Newcastle-upon-Tyne (UK).

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 3rd October 2005.
He has been involved in the financial and securities industries
for over 31 years and has extensive operational and management
experience in bullion, securities, futures and foreign exchange
financial services business with prominent banks, international
financial institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr.
Man is currently a general manager of BMI Securities Limited.
He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from

Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

DIRECTORS - continued

Independent Non-executive Directors — continued

Mr. KWONG Chi Kit Victor, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 3rd
October, 2005. He is currently the financial controller of
Anwell Technologies Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on Singapore Exchange Limited, Mr. Kwong has more
than 20 years of experience covering auditing, accounting
and financial management in commercial, manufacturing and
public accounting sectors. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and AnGang Steel Company Limited, companies whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United
Kingdom) and member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce

from Curtin University of Technology, Australia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Hon Sau, Larry, aged 44, is the responsible officer of
Get Nice Futures Co. Ltd and Get Nice Securities Limited. He
has over 20 years of experience in the financial industry with
18 years in securities and futures and several years in corporate
banking. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance

from California State University, Fresno, USA.

Ms. LAM Fung Sin, aged 42, is the qualified accountant of
the Group. She holds a MBA degree from the University of
Manchester and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of

Certified Accountants.

Mr. YIU Chi Ming, Louis, aged 53, is the responsible officer
of Get Nice Capital Limited and is responsible for the corporate
finance activities of the Group. Mr. Yiu holds a master’s degree
in accounting from Curtin University of Technology in Australia
and a professional diploma in Company Secretaryship and
Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic. He has been
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators of England since 1988 and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries since 1994.
Mr. Yiu has over 16 years of experience in investment banking,
corporate finance advisory work, placing, underwriting and sub-

underwriting activities.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to
being a transparent and responsible organization which is open
and accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The directors
of the Company (“Directors”) believe that good corporate
governance practices are increasingly important for maintaining

and promoting investors’ confidence.

An explanation of how the principles of the corporate governance
were put into practice during the year under review is set out

below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE
Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Company

has complied with the code provisions, and where appropriate,
adopted the Recommended Best Practices set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKEx”), with the exceptions of the following code

provisions:

Code A.4.1

Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for
specific terms but subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company according

to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”).

Code A.6.7
Pursuant to Code A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-

executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend the general meetings of the Company. Mr. Liu Chun Ling
Wilfred and Mr. Man Kong Yui, independent non-executive
Directors, were unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 24th August, 2012 as they had other

important business engagements at that relevant time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically set
by the Board. In addition, the Board has also established Board
Committees and has delegated to these Board Committees
various responsibilities set out in their terms of reference

respectively.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, more than one-
third of the Directors are non-executive and independent of the
management. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Group’s affair. The Board has a balance of skill and experience

appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s businesses.

As at the date of this annual report, five of them are executive,
namely, Mr. Hung Hon Man, chairman, Mr. Cham Wai Ho,
Anthony, vice chairman, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, managing
director, Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, CEO, and Mr. Lung Hon Lui,
and three of the Directors are independent non-executive,
namely Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong Yui and
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor.

Each of Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in the
“Biographical details of directors and senior management” of this
annual report. The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other relationships with each other save for that Mr.

Hung Sui Kwan is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon Man.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an

annual basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of

the Company and of the conduct, business activities and

development of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT - continued

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, relevant reading
materials including regulatory update and seminar handouts,
etc have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Hung Hon Man 3L B

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony H s ek

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie AR

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan Tk i 3 5 A

Mr. Lung Hon Lui HE 5 ek

Mr. Chiang Chun Yi (note 1) TR (K1)
Independent non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred B AR e 5 A

Mr. Man Kong Yui SC I 58 A

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor i A S

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy (note 2) ZHAE L (B FE2)

Note 1: resigned on 8th June, 2012
Note 2:  resigned on 2nd April, 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. At least 14 days formal
notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings
and reasonable notices are given for all other ad hoc meetings.
All regular Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which
a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board and all Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for Board
meetings. All Directors have access to Board papers and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enable the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any

Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Directors are also provided with monthly performance and
position updates of the Group to enable the Board as a whole as

well as each Director to discharge their duties.
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ERERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, nine Board meetings
and one general meeting have been held. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of

communications. Details of the attendance of the directors in the

EXEREEEZEEER

PEEE-=ZF A= —HIEFE
EREGRTIVKEFGERL WK
B o H A A S S0 K Tl a7 U R
Tk o EHE AR

meetings are as follows:

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HEEEZRY/ RERLEZEHAY

Board
-
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Hung Hon Man B 719
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony HRE L 8/9
M. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Agfaidk 719
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan it g e e A 719
Mr. Lung Hon Lui EERLE 6/9
Mr. Chiang Chun Yi (note 1) TR (i #1) 0/1
Independent non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BREEE 719
Mr. Man Kong Yui SCHIBE A A 719
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor | IR 719
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy (note 2) ZEEML i) 0/0

Note 1: resigned on 8th June, 2012
Note 2:  resigned on 2nd April, 2012
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man,
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1st April, 2002 and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ prior notice in writing to the
other. The executive Directors who were appointed on 28th
April, 2011, namely Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, Mr. Lung Hon Lui
and Mr. Chiang Chun Yi (resigned on 8th June, 2012), have not
entered into any service contract with the Company and there
are no fixed or proposed length of service with the Company. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every

three years.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next annual
general meeting of the Company and should then be eligible for

re-clection at the meeting.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Hung Hon Man, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and Mr. Lung
Hon Lui will retire by rotation and, being eligible with offer

themselves for re-election.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2013.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished

price-sensitive information of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are complementary, but importantly, they are distinct

and separate with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man, the chairman of the Company provides
leadership to the Board; ensures effectiveness of the Board and

foster better relationships between Directors.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, the CEO of the Company, develops
strategies for the Board’s approval, executes the strategies
agreed by the Board and leads the management of the Group’s
operation. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon
Man, the Chairman of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its shareholders can be protected.

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Board at all-time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such Director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Both Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Kwong
Chi Kit, Victor have the appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters required. Pursuant to the
requirement in the Listing Rules, the Company has received
a written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors of his independence to the Company. The
Board considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgement and they
also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the Group.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Pursuant to the levels of authority approved by the Board, the
senior management executes day-to-day operations unless the
subject matter exceeds the authority granted by the Board or
relates to any matters specifically reserved to the Board, they
would seek approval from the Board.

The Board has established (i) Nomination Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee; and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of the
HKEx and the Company. The board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seck independent professional
advice and other assistance in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i)
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable
candidates for directorship after consideration of the nominees’
independence and quality in order to ensure the fairness
and transparency of all nominations; and (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. In
identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the nomination committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to, his/her education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships. The Nomination Committee currently
comprises three members, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr.
Man Kong Yui and Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor (chairman of

nomination committee).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee — continued

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
There were two meetings held in the year ended 31st March,
2013 during which they have assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and review the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee, on named basis, at
committee meetings during the year is set out in the section

“Board and Board Committee Meetings” of this report above.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Liu Chun
Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Kwong Chi
Kit, Victor (chairman of Remuneration Committee). The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. There
were two meetings held in the year ended 31st March, 2013
during which they have (i) reviewed the remuneration package
of executive Directors; and (ii) approved and recommended
to the Board the terms of new share option scheme of the
Company. The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee, on named basis, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board and Board Committee

Meetings” of this report above.

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
to them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditors and has authority to raise questions
regarding the resignation or dismissal of the auditors; overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process and internal control
and risk management systems and reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee has access to and maintains an independent

communication with the external auditor and management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

directors and senior management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr.
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor, all of whom are not involved in the
day-to-day management of the Company. Mr. Kwong Chi Kit,
Victor, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The principal work performed by
the Audit Commirttee during the year included (i) review of
interim and annual consolidated financial statements, (ii) review
of management letter provided by the external auditor, (iii)
review and discuss with the management about effectiveness of
internal control; (iv) review and monitor continuous professional
development of Directors; and (v) review the Company’s
compliance with CG Code and relevant disclosures. The Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year. There were two meetings
held during the year ended 31st March, 2013. The attendance
of each member of the Audit Committee, on named basis, at
committee meetings during the year is set out in the section
“Board and Board Committee Meetings” of this report above.
There has been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the

external auditor.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
comprehensive information to the shareholders on assessment of

the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern as at 31st March, 2013. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements for

the year ended 31st March, 2013 on a going concern basis.

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on
pages 41 to 42.

Independent auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31st March, 2013, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditor, provided the

following services to the Group:
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results, and cash flows for the year.
Management provides the Board with management accounts and
updates on a monthly basis, with a view to giving a balanced and
under stable assessment of the Group’s performance, financial
position, and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties. In preparing the financial

statements for the year ended 31st March 2013, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

(¢) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;

and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.

In financial year 2013, the annual and interim results were
published within 3 months and 2 months respectively after
the end of the relevant periods to provide stakeholders with

transparent and timely financial information.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND THEIR
EFFECTIVENESS

The Board is responsible to safeguard the shareholder’s
investment and the Group’s assets as well as to achieve the
objectives of the Group. Thus, a comprehensive internal control
system is established and implemented throughout the Group
during the year to meet the Group’s particular needs and the
risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss. The Directors confirm that they have reviewed the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2013.
The review covered all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and the risk management
function as well as the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The assessment was
made after discussions with the management of the Company
and a review performed by the Audit Committee. The Board is
of the view that the existing internal control system is adequate

and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kam Leung Ming is the Company Secretary of the Company
and a full time employee of the Company. He has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Kam confirmed that
he has complied with all the required qualifications, experience

and training requirements of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure the investors
and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the

publication of annual reports, announcements and circulars.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS - continued

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence
on the Company’s website www.getnice.com.hk. The Board
maintains regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep
them informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management
and plans. The Directors and the members of the various board
committees would attend and answer questions raised at the
general meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions would be
proposed at the general meeting on each substantially separate

issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company would
explain the procedures for conducting a poll before putting
a resolution to vote. The results of the voting by poll would
be published on the websites of the HKEx and the Company

respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharecholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary by mail at the Company’s principal office address in
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS - continued

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Sharcholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 10/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary
should forwards communications relating to matters within the
Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating to

ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries to

the CEO.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

.
meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, there had been no

significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are (i) property holding, hotel operation
and provision of marketing and business promotion of a casino;
(ii) provision of financial services, including securities dealing
and broking, futures and options broking, securities margin
financing, money lending, corporate finance services; (iii)
property development and holding and investment in financial
instruments. Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out

in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2013

are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on pages 43 to 44.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share amounting to
HK$44,735,000 in aggregate was paid during the year. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.01 per share to the shareholders on the register of
members on 30th August, 2013.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31st March,
2013 is set out on page 160 of this annual report.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property and
equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
in notes 18 and 20 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages

47 to 48.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31st March, 2013, the reserves of the Company available

for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$2,503,418,000 which comprised the share premium, special

reserve and retained profits.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman)

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing Director)
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lung Hon Lui

Mr. Chiang Chun Yi (resigned on 8th June, 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred

Mr. Man Kong Yui

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy (resigned on 2nd April, 2012)

Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and Mr. Lung
Hon Lui will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with provision 108 of the Company’s Articles of

Association. Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Certain executive directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man,
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie
have entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial fixed term of three years and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing

served by either party on the other.

The term of office of each non-executive director is for the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

1.

The Group acquired a property in Hong Kong at a
consideration of HK$16,500,000 from a company
beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung Thomas. Mr.
Lau is the director of and shareholder holding 10% interest
in Grand Waldo Outlets Company Limited, a 65% owned
subsidiary of the Group. According to the definition of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lau is a connected
person of the Company. The Directors, including the
independent non-executive directors, approved the
transaction in view of the transaction was on normal
commercial terms and was fair and reasonable and was for
the benefit of the Group. The transaction was exempted
from the reporting, announcement and independent
sharcholders’ approval requirements under rule 14A.31(9)
of the Listing Rules.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing

REXS KEBRERS

2.

A4 [ 24 16,500,00085 7C 2 ACAE ] — [
PSS e SR WA 2 N R —
MR EF®ZWE - Bt &
JE B A R A (A AR E B HEA 65%HE
M AF) ZEE AN
10%ME 45 2 A » L > AR$E LT AL Al
BUATE 2 EF > BIRERARNFZH
N o N LA B R T OE W 2R
AT~ JB AT AT AT A7 5 A
%o EE (EIEELIERATES) Bt
HERZ AL S - LA R s Bl
LS 14A 3190 TH T 2 B #H > A i
T 0 ST B R T B BLE o

REBBERECERBME

Brokerage

commission
income paid
to the Group
for the year

Margin loan Maximum

interest paid amount of
to the Group margin loan

for the year for the year

FRE FRE
NFF&H HFFEE FR
A 5 ZREE RELTER
RERA LE ZREEH
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
oy o o
23,563 5,786 891,538
43,812 - -
6,686 - -
7,089 54,090 580,099
135,107 41,040 5,331,920
19,359 - -
1,382 42,328 570,462
85,753 - -

Name of connected person BEATHSR

Executive Directors: BITES:

Hung Hon Man and his associates WECREHE AL

Cham Wai Ho Anthony and his associates Y PER T YN

Shum Kin Wai Frankie and his associate A RABEAL

Hung Sui Kwan and his associates s RN NP,

Lung Hon Lui T H

Directors of certain subsidiaries AEBETHELARZES:
of the Group:

Cheng Wai Ho and his associate Bk R L 8 A+

Ho Kwok Kwan ol [ £

Cheung Chung Kiu and his associates RIMEREHE AL
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3. Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
had reviewed the continuing connected transactions
not falling under rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules and

confirmed that the transactions were:

(a) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of

business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available to

or from independent third parties; and

(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholder of

the Company as a whole.

The maximum value of the margin loans advanced to
Mr. Lung Hon Lui (“Mr. Lung”) during the year under
the margin client agreement entered into between Mr.
Lung and the Group was more than 0.1% but less than
5% in respect of applicable percentage ratio under rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules and more than HK$1,000,000,
the provision of securities margin financing to Mr. Lung
was exempt from independent shareholders” approval
requirement. The Company, however, should have
complied with, but was in breach of, the applicable
reporting and announcement requirements under
rules 14A.45, 14A.46 and 14A.47 of the Listing Rules
(“Breaches”) for the period from 1st April, 2012 to
31st October, 2012. Details of the Breaches and the
remedial actions taken were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 2nd November, 2012. From 1st
November, 2012 onwards, all the continuing connected
transactions are maintained at a level which is below the
de minimis threshold prescribed under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3.

Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

— continued

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions with Mr. Lung
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions with
M. Lung for the year ended 31st March, 2013 disclosed by
the Group in accordance with the Listing Rules 14A.38(1),
14A.38(2) and 14A.38(3). During the year, the Company
did not announce a cap before entering into the continuing
connected transactions with Mr. Lung and accordingly, the
auditor has not performed the procedures described in the
Listing Rule 14A.38(4) with respect to these continuing
connected transactions. A copy of the auditor’s letter has

been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Directors considered that the maximum value
of margin loans advanced to Mr Lung amounting to
HK$5,332,000 should have been set and announced as
a cap for the continuing connected transactions during
the period of the Breaches. Such maximum amount has
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
2nd November 2012 and the note 27 to the audited
consolidated financial statements. The Directors are of the
view that adequate alternative procedures have been carried

out to meet the purpose of the Listing Rule 14A.38(4).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by

the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note

45 to the financial statements. Those related party transactions

which constituted connected transactions/continuing connected

transactions under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the

section headed “Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected

Transactions” on pages 32 to 34 of this annual report, have
complied with Chapter 14A.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
At 31st March, 2013, the interests of the Directors and their

associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code”), were as follows:
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1. Long positions 1. %A
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company (@) A2 ] BEJR T . 178 0.2 &

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company
FRIBE#RT MHBEALRAEBT
EEHR EEEE EEREE RAZBED
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (note) 1,342,018,583 29.99%

L 8 H s PR A ()
Mr. Lung Hon Lui Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.07%

HE 5 Jo Ha A A

(b) Long positions in the underlying shares — Share options of

the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEHS EEME

Mr. Lung Hon Lui Beneficial owner
HEBE T ek Ha A A

(b) T B I 1 — AR 2 ] Z B
FE

Number of Number of
option held underlying shares

sl RERE HERH®E

15,000,000 15,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
— continued

2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),

EEzROER &

2. REQRAZEMBARDSEHESFAR
RA((HEFRSF]) 2BREELET

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company ZEREREERZHER

Percentage

Number of of the issued

non-voting non-voting

deferred deferred share

Name of Director Capacity shares* held of GNS

LHETES

FEERER CRITEKRER

EEpns ERME EER<E B EER 2B

Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
BT ' e HamEAa A

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
AgfgEet Haa A

40,000,000 100%

The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2013, none of the
Directors nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company granted under the
share option scheme during the year are set out in note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no options were granted to any director of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above and the long positions in the share
options as mentioned in “Directors’ Interests in Shares”, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares of
the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2013, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that the following shareholders had an interest of 5% or
more in the issued share capital of the Company and this interest
represents long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company.

Long positions

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name Capacity

=L EEME

Hung Hon Man
T M2k B (i)

Beneficial owner (note)

Ha A N (B 7E)

Honeylink Agents Limited
(“Honeylink”)

Held by controlled corporation (note)
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FERRK
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FOE T M TRC Bk > DAR B A AR A A
Z AT IEAR 5% B LA b 2 HE 25 1 A 25 Y
AR\ ) A B T (B0 1 8 T B 2 A e

wE
(a) A2 F A E (E 0. 178 0 2 2 8 i

Percentage

Number of

issued ordinary

shares held

of the issued
share capital

of the company

FIBEsT HAXARTERT
EERBA BAZBDH
1,342,018,583 29.99%
1,342,018,583 29.99%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS - continued

Long positions — continued
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company — continued

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
1,342,018,583 ordinary shares of the Company which are
held by Honeylink, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon
Man.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share

capital of the Company at 31st March, 2013.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2013.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$10,000.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 14 to 28 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period

are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the independent non-
executive directors namely, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr.
Man Kong Yui and Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor for the year
ended 31st March, 2013. The Company still considers Mr. Liu
Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Kwong Chi
Kit, Victor to be independent as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman

Hung Hon Man

27th June, 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabiliry)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to
159, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st March, 2013, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibility — continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
March, 2013, and of its loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27th June, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_T—-"F-A-T-BHLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013
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2013 2012
—E-=F TR TR
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
i FER T#IT
Revenue I %5 7 543,567 752,107
Other operating income At 7 3 i A 9a 6,853 17,258
Other gains and losses A i K e 4R 9b (154,433) (136,665)
Depreciation e 18 (103,058) (106,283)
Amortisation of prepaid lease T AT B ARIH
payments 2 Y (38,610) (38,504)
Commission expenses iEA (123,300) (333,661)
Staff costs H T A 10 (88,005) (92,896)
Consumables used 6 FE L 1 (25,969) (35,422)
Impairment loss on goodwill 7R B 2 9 (E s 1R 23 - (79,529)
Other expenses HoAth BH 32 (120,415) (158,333)
Finance costs il A 11 (10,754) (15,334)
Loss before taxation B 1l 5 48 12 (114,124) (227,262)
Taxation BiIH 14 5,213 19
Loss for the year A e 4E (108,911) (227,243)
Other comprehensive income oA A T A
Exchange difference arising Y B A 2 M S
on translation FEH 239 (57)
Surplus on revaluation of properties ) 3 H il &1 ik 18 1,386 3,267
Deferred tax arising on revaluation WERERMEELZ
of properties R JE B IH 36 (229) (539)
Other comprehensive income AR AR R 2 FC Al 4 T 0
for the year 1,396 2,671
Total comprehensive expense AR 2 A T B 3
for the year HEH (107,515) (224,572)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###ZRER Q7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

2013 2012
—E-=F TE—TARE
NOTE HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B THERT T
Loss for the year attributable to: DL ON T EAG A4 2 1R
Owners of the Company N/NESIE: ZEDN (27,629) (144,983)
Non-controlling interests IE H2 I 4 £ (81,282) (82,260)
(108,911) (227,243)
Total comprehensive expense PLR N REAG 4 TH
attributable to: B = M
Owners of the Company ZN/NESES RSN (26,233) (142,312)
Non-controlling interests IE HE I ME £ (81,282) (82,260)
(107,515) (224,572)
Loss per share (Eaivd TR 16
— Basic — A HK(0.62) centsi&ll HK(3.24) centsitEAll
— Diluted — HK(0.62) centsi flll |  HK(3.24) cencsits il

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

/L’\ —F— =A= + I—!

At 51st March, 201

2013 2012
—E—-=F ZE -4
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
it & FHET Tt
Non-current assets I ) &
Prepaid lease payments T AT A B OH 17 564,678 603,288
Property and equipment L EN & ] 18 872,903 950,194
Construction in progress e T 19 880 5,851
Investment properties BEWHE 20 1,365,600 1,499,900
Intangible assets Y E 21 8,955 8,955
Goodwill Gk 22 15,441 15,441
Other assets HoAth & 24 3,476 2,903
Deferred tax assets 0 AL Fod TH 36 558 716
Loans and advances B S BGK 25 2,400 1,376
Deposit i 26 50,000 50,000
Investments in securities i 75 29 21,770 38,850
2,906,661 3,177,474
Current assets it ) A
Accounts receivable I R JE 27 1,456,675 1,472,151
Loans and advances B K 25 91,260 68,809
Amounts due from non-controlling & it JF ¥ i i oK
shareholders IH 34 - 5,885
Prepaid lease payments T A OH 17 38,957 38,957
Inventories & 28 1,736 1,683
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAT A ~ e R
receivables ﬁw@lﬁz KIH 37 9,653 68,250
Taxation recoverable il W [m] 4 JE 314 1,617
Investments in securities R E 29 31,978 28,087
Derivatives ik TH 30 - 1,710
Bank balances — client accounts WATH R — K FRF 31 198,372 171,209
Bank balances — general accounts RATE B — — IR P
and cash Je B4 32 213,628 184,371
2,042,573 2,042,729
Assets classified as held for sale NERRAENREZEE 20 - 62,893
2,042,573 2,105,622

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###ZRER Q7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZEBE—=F=ZA= + H
At 31st March, 201
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2013 2012
—E—=F TE—TARE
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B THERT T
Current liabilities E A
Accounts payable JEE Ao R IH 33 299,742 254,646
Accrued charges and other JRE w2 F K HoAth
accounts payable & At R T 22,444 27,673
Amounts due to non-controlling IR I e SRR T
shareholders 34 431,846 403,713
Taxation payable A} i JE 3,631 8,374
Bank borrowings AT E 35 169,627 169,225
927,290 863,631
Net current assets W) A 1,115,283 1,241,991
Total assets less current liabilities A% PE W LD A A 4,021,944 4,419,465
Non-current liabilities E N =W
Bank borrowings RAITHE S 35 162,840 332,502
Deferred tax liabilities IR AL Fod IH £ 1 36 138,011 163,318
300,851 495,820
Net assets & E 3,721,093 3,923,645
Capital and reserves A S At
Share capital JBeA 38 447,348 447,348
Reserves bt 2,927,200 3,042,431
Equity attributable to owners AN F A N AL HE A
of the Company 3,374,548 3,489,779
Non-controlling interests I PR HE 75 346,545 433,866
Total equity HHE 45 3,721,093 3,923,645

FAIHEF ISR Z B R EREF R
F—=4ENH b B HUE R R TS
S R B EE AR A E

The financial statements on pages 43 to 159 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th June,
2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Hon Man Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
HEX R B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
#HF #HF

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRHEARL
Share
Properties ~ option and Non-
Share Share  Special revaluation  warrant Translation  Retained controlling
NOTES ~ capital ~ premium  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests Total
BRER
NEER BRER
R RBEEE SRR it e EXRE REEA 8% FEREE 4%
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$000  HKS000
Wi TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx TEx T TEx  TEx
(Note)
(i)
Balances ar Ist April, 2011 RZFE——HNA—H
L5 47348 2289139 123,337 3,671 7,715 79 817628 37197 516126 4,235,243
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - (144983)  (144983)  (82,200) (227,243
Other comprehensive income ~ A4F [ Z H M2 U
for the year
Exchange difference arising ~~ HSTAE 2 B £ R
on translation - - - - - (57) - (57) - (57)
Surplus on revaluation of WEEGRS
propertics - - - 3,67 - - - 3,607 - 3,67
Deferred tax arising on WERfEEZ
revaluation of properties LRI - - - (539) - - - (539) - (539)
- - - - ) - - 47
Total comprehensive expense &S5 2 2 T B AR 1
for the year - - - 2,728 - (57)  (144983)  (142312)  (82,260)  (224,572) g
Dividends recognised as AR RS §
distiburion 15 - - - - - - 470 (®470) - (89470) 3
Release upon expiry of share IR E £ 1 2 FEt S
options granted o GE 6 - - - - (547) - 547 - - - >
Recognition of share based ELUSUPS T il
payment expenses 39(b) - - - - 2,444 - - 2,444 - 2,444 B
Balances at 315t March, 2012~ REZE—ZF
SA=T- N2 AR M7348 209139 BB 6399 W61 W 93T 3ATT9 433866 3923645

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED & ##ERE R &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHE—_Z2—=F=ZA=+—BItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALARAAEL
Share
Properties ~ option and Non-
Share Share  Special revaluation  warrant Translation  Retained controlling
NOTES  capital ~ premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total  interests Total
BRER
nEER  ARER
kx RHEER HARR C1] i EXRE REERA 8% FEREE 4%
HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS000
Wit F#x FEx TEx TEn TEx TEx FEx TiEx TEx TEx
(Note)
(Hizt)
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - e (769 (818 (108911)
Other comprehensive income RERZ EbETE
for the year
Exchange difference arising BAREZERER
on translation - - - - - 239 - 239 - 239
Surplus on revaluation of WER R
properties - - - 1,386 - - - 1,386 - 1,386
Deferred tax arising on WEEHELL
revaluation of properties AR - - - (229) - - - (229) - (229)
- - - 1,157 - 139 - 1,396 - 1,396
Total comprehensive expense A5 2 2T AR
for the year - - - 1,157 - 239 (27,6299 (26233  (81,282)  (107,515)
Dividends recognised as B MR RS
distribution 15 - - - - - - (89,470)  (89,470) - (89,470)
Release upon expiry of share R E &t Z B RHER
options and warrants granted R R - - - - (23,381) - 23,381 - - -
Recognition of share based TERRBIR N 2 3
payment expenses 39(b) - - - - 472 - - 47 - 472
Dividends paid to Bt g 2
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (6,039) (6,039)
Balances at 31st March, 2013 RZZ—=4
ZNET A28k 447,548 2,289,139 123,337 7,556 6,703 461 500,004 3374548 346545 3,721,093
Note: Mt it

The special reserve of the Group arose as a result of the group
reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) completed on 16th May, 2002, which
principally involved the exchange of shares of the Company with all the
issued share capital of Get Nice Incorporated. The details are set out in
the prospectus dated 24th May, 2002 issued by the Company.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries together with the net book value of a
subordinated loan capitalised at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to
the listing of the Company’s shares, as well as the difference between
the consolidated sharcholders’ funds of the acquired subsidiaries and
the nominal value of the Get Nice Incorporated’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_FT—=%=A=+—H LF’*
For the year ended 31st March, 201

2013 2012
—EB—-=5F TR TR
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
it & FHET Tt
Operating activities R
Loss before taxation T Al s 48 (114,124) (227,262)
Adjustments for: FEE TR
Depreciation g 18 103,058 106,283
Amortisation of prepaid A AH B R TE
lease payments 38,610 38,504
Net (reversal) allowance of PIRIHH 2 WE k8
impairment loss on (13 [m1) A 41605 B
— loans and advances — K S R (34) 4,469
— loans to securities margin — R
clients C RN & 755 3,234
Impairment loss on goodwill 7R 2 B s 1R - 79,529
Share-based payment expenses DA S A 2 32 39(b) 472 2,444
Fair value change on investment BEY A RE
properties ) 20 150,800 124,535
Interest expenses FLE L 10,754 15,334
Interest income Fl B A (132,386) (143,418) 49
Gain on disposal of property GARRYE Y g
and equipment P& (226) (267) z
Fair value change on financial F2 U0 FUAR A 18 2 T R 5
assets at fair value through ZRMEER ép
profit or loss VNVIRIEE X0 3,859 30,310 %
<
Operating cash flows before 28 -t TN ::
movements in working capital KCg B e = 61,538 33,695 &
(Increase) decrease in other assets HoA & E (g m) b (573) 1,240
Decrease in other receivable JFL At B SR T sk 2D - 19,930
Decrease in accounts receivable JE Wi R T D 14,721 289,930
Increase in loans and advances AR S R (23,441) (12,265)
Decrease in properties under FrE R T YER D
development for sale 42,667
Increase in inventories & (53) (191)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, A FIH ~ 4 S HoA
deposits and other receivables B SR B B D () 49,297 (6,138)
Decrease in financial assets held FRE R E 2 & E
for trading 0% 15,840 2,913
(Increase) decrease in bank balances  $RIT45E — KT IRT
— client accounts (8 m) ek A (27,163) 30,387
Increase (decrease) in accounts JREAST R TEE i (3 )
payable 45,096 (58,817)
Decrease in accrued charges and JRE T 2 Y % At JE A
other accounts payable R JH > (5,176) (36,080)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###ZRER Q7



a

M €107 Hodey [enuuy

an (=) fﬁ, H Ull.EiE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_Z—=F=-A=+—8HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

2013 2012
—EB—-=5F TR TR
NOTES HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
it & THERT Tt
Cash generated from operations K pissle 130,086 307,271
Interest income received B LR A 132,386 133,348
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BT A s R A5 B (19,948) (22,412)
Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax paid & & #2& Fl 55 %
B 38t (715) -
Net cash from operating activities K SEW5 N A9 19 Bl 4 241,809 418,207
Investing activities % & T
Purchase of financial assets W R E By H A R R
designated at fair value o MR 2 &R E E
through profit or loss (4,800) (12,627)
Disposal of financial assets 8 E R A SUE R
designated at fair value 18 73 TR 2 4 Rl
through profit or loss - 44,314
Disposal of a subsidiary HEE e 2 F (2,995) -
Proceeds on disposal of property W KR 2
and equipment JiIr 15 3K IH 391 344
Proceeds on disposal of investment HEREY R TG
properties IE 72,193 -
Additions of construction in T 3 TR 3
progress 19 (6,002) (4,971)
Purchase of property and equipment [ 5 ¥ 3£ KX 5 18 (13,573) (8,699)
Purchase of investment properties WEH B 20 (16,500) -
Purchase of intangible assets Wi N\ T - (451)
Net cash from investing activities & W S 2 Bl 28,714 17,910
Financing activities il 3£ 5
Increase in amounts due to YE X T &S
non-controlling shareholders HEm 28,133 13,295
Bank borrowings raised G SRAT A A - 907,500
Interest paid e AT LS 9,817) (15,334)
Dividends paid (nore) CATRE (M 7E) (89,624) (89,470)
Repayment of bank borrowings fEIRPATIE & (170,197) (1,232,220)
Net cash used in financing activities RlVE TR 2 F 4 (241,505) (416,229)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_ZT—=F=A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

2013 2012
—E-=F - S
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHERT T T
Net increase in cash and e KBS ETH
cash equivalents B 29,018 19,888
Effect of foreign exchange rate G T R B 2 R
changes 239 191
Cash and cash equivalents at B R B A
beginning of the year HH 184,371 164,292
Cash and cash equivalents at end RS M &% E
of the year HH 213,628 184,371
Represented by: 5
Bank balances — general accounts WATEE R — — IR P 212,665 183,490
Cash B 963 881
213,628 184,371

Note: During the year, Fortune On Engineering Limited (“Fortune
On”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, declared
dividend to non-controlling interests amounting HK$6,039,000,
of which HK$5,885,000 was agreed between Fortune On and the
non-controlling interests to be settled by set-off with the amount

due from non-controlling interests.

i A N R N/NIET P ol < 1l /N K S
FRA PR A (TR A D) 1) JF #4825 & UR
6,039,000% J0.2 IS, » 17T 4 2l B I 22 A
15 19 5 & 95,885,000 TT 1 LA B B i
I ¥ IO £ i TE 2y 2 5T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Z=

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

1.

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Its substantial shareholder is Honeylink
Agents Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands with limited liability of which the entire share
capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activity of Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note

47.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and revised standards and interpretations applied in

the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery
of underlying asset

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures — transfers

of financial assets

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax — Recovery of

— continued

underlying assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets”
in the current year. Under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for
the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the

presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using the
fair value model. As a result of the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12, the directors of the Company
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that all investment properties of the Group
located in Hong Kong and Macau are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, and that the presumption set out in
the amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted with respect

to those properties located in Hong Kong and Macau.

As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS
12, the Group does not recognise any deferred taxes on
changes in fair value of the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any
income taxes on disposal of its investment properties in
Hong Kong. Previously, the Group recognised deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties on
the basis that the entire carrying amounts of the properties
were recovered through use. The directors of the Company
consider that the impact of the adoption of the amendments
to HKAS 12 in relation to the investment properties located
in Hong Kong is insignificant for prior years and current
period, and accordingly, the amendments to HKAS 12 in
relation to the investment properties located in Hong Kong
have not been applied retrospectively and cumulative effects

have been recognised in current year’s profit or loss.
g Y
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAFIRKEBIEEBUBR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING LR &
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax — Recovery of ERASTEANFNR BT TEER
underlying assets — continued H-WEEBEE|-&
The Group is subject to the same tax rate in relation to MR Z B EWENF > N A
the investment properties located in Macau whether the B A ) 3R B U B R A
investment properties are recovered through sale or use. Tl s A B2 G T 2 B Ay
prop
Accordingly, the amendment to HKAS12 has no impact to MR o R - F ke st 5E1298 2
the Group in relation to the investment properties located BT B AL AR R 2 BE Y 2
in Macau. R34
New and revised standards and interpretations issued but CEAANAEN TR QSIBITE
not yet effective AR 2E
The Group has not early applied the following new and 4 [E] N7 042 L RE AT 51 © 4 MR
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet SRRk 7 W ET R KNS BT 7 AR
effective: wEH
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Tl BHFR I S B (T é%gﬁ%;&%@gguz
2009 - 2011 Cycle! @Vﬂli’%* THE
f#*m;ﬁ fif!
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial 7 e T 4 e 7 BE-2REERSTH
Assets and Financial Liabilities' ba 1l BB
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of 7 e 7 45 2 ) 4 Tl B FS 6 s )
and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition T 75 s B 40 2 e Bout v mH A
Disclosures’ w782 BT H AR
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, FHRIBRERASI0 . LAMERE 48
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and BB ENS1SE RN @Egﬁz
Disclosure of Interests in Other T s S e HH NG
Entities: Transition Guidance' 18 T @)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities® FHM RN S 105 REER
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 T e AR A Ve ) 4 008
&%‘fﬁ@ FHER 275
2B
HKEFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ e BEFS 6 e ) 503 ART A
HKEFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements! BB RRS10%  SAMERR
HKEFRS 11 Joint Arrangements' FRMBHEENS% A8k
HKERS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other BB RAS1E R fﬂaﬁ%Z%ﬁﬁ
Entities' ZhE
HKEFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement! il TR 4 e 358 N ikiny
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) ~ Employee Benefits' Ttk 2 | 4 1958 I BB H!
(R =F——5Ei])
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements’ e 2 1| 50758 B EE
(R ZF——4ET)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and %‘{%@ﬁ@ﬁﬂ%%?ﬁ ey LU
Joint Ventures' (R = B——E ) N Y 3
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Fik e HJH/@E B3t 74 IR IR N le
Comprehensive Income’ R
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and FRG RN S0E BT ABEERLWE R
Financial Liabilities? 255
HK(IFRIC) - INT 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Tt (B I BE 2 e ) FR T B
Phase of a Surface Mine! SEEEG) 2B HERA
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist

January, 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist
January, 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist
January, 2015.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist
July, 2012.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically,
the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous

realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement

or similar arrangement.

The amended offsetting disclosures are required for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
also be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective
until annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2014,

with retrospective application required.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS
7 may result in more disclosures being made with regard
to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the

future.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement” to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 will be effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st January, 2015, with early adoption permitted.
The Group is considering the implications of HKFRS 9,
the impact on the Group and timing of its adoption by
the Group. Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards relevant to the

Group are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12
“Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee,
and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS

12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1st April, 2013. The directors of the Company
considered that the application of these five standards
have no significant impact on amounts reported in the

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13
is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the current
standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under
HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities

within its scope.

HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning Ist
April, 2013 and the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the new Standard may affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts
or fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A

2.

P& PR %7 5T R ARAE 5] B 78 B 35 4R
HER -

EEMBRELENSBHR D RERT
E]

s 5 o R T SR 1 3t S — (R
NAREZ R RPN R ER R E
— AR5 o RZHERI A E T fulE o S
FHEA R HER K ERA R ER &
Z AR o AU B O YE SR 1358
1 R o (] IR T AR A A 7
SV 5 S o Y ) (o L L) 2 o
F R EA /A W (= i e L 182 /A W
ZamTHIER RIFeMTHIAR -
— M A R o e R A 130
A TSR L BUAT ME JI 2 R Ty B R
o PN AR PR U B i YE R
eI T H - ER | H AR 2R &
AT HARM 2 = A R BE
B BRI AR YR A o RS R e
FI 585 13908 1 8 2 FL A B A 2 T A
USSE

A v T R e L A 13T 0 &
— AR H — H B iR 2 A B 2 AR
EHLGEMBERETRM > AN FE
TR U0 Y o TR Y T o AR T
B H R BT 5 4R 2 BB Y BG4 F
JRAE ARG WA 3 P A B R 2 4R

EFERGTHE

o A S 2 T AR R U R R A
L 2 7 Vs B 5 07 4 0 T 4 o O
B o 5 B S 4 64 T VS T 4 52 5
AT BRZA T i %5 T B e i 8 )
V4910 2 3 L

o PO S R T i R o A S Y
B M T W) 3 e T Y EAG
BN REF R AR T X
ZERTEUR o R ORA — AR E
il IR B A AR 22 28 S (B 2 AR R

EHEEFBEREIIWT -



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits

from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date
of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-

controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at
the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognise as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment

in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Business combinations — continued

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”

respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into
to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are

measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

GET

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Business combinations — continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the

basis specified in another standard.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest

were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised

as of that date.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit

or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted
for as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each step.
Any additional acquisition did not affect the previously

recognised goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or a jointly
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or

loss on disposal.

3.
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HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

services provided in the normal course of business.

(a) Revenue arising from financial services is recognised on

the following basis:

o Commission income for broking business is

recorded as income on a trade date basis;

o Underwriting commission income, sub-
underwriting commission income, placing
commission and sub-placing commission are
recognised as income in accordance with the
terms of the underwriting agreement or deal
mandate when the relevant significant acts have

been completed;

e Advisory and clearing and handling fee income
are recognised when the relevant transactions
have been arranged or the relevant services have

been rendered; and

e Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis using the effective interest
method, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

(b) Revenue arising from hotel and entertainment

operations is recognised on the following basis:

*  Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised
upon the provision of the accommodation
services. Revenue from food and beverage sales
and other ancillary services are recognised upon

the provision of goods and services;

*  Revenue arising from provision of gaming related
marketing and business promotion services in a
casino is recognised when the relevant services
have been rendered and the Group is entitled to
the share of gross win and gross loss in respect
of the operating performance of the gaming
operator. The revenue is recognised based on
the established rates for the gaming wins, after
deduction of special gaming tax and other related
taxes to the Macau Government, which reflect
the gross inflow of economic benefits to the
Group. In addition, all relevant operating and
administrative expenses relating to the operations
of the casino are borne by the Group and are
recognised as expenses of the Group in the

consolidated financial statements; and

*  Service income is recognised when the services are

provided.

(c) Rental income under operating leases is recognised in
the profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in the profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

receivable.

BHEzE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—BHIt&E
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3. TEEFHHER-&

W R —
(b) T Bl 4 5 3 i i % DA TS SRR
ffERg -

o N AEfE 2 W a R B AT e
e 5 ey e o A i A H
b L R 5 2 Wi AR R BRI
vty S R 55 I e AR

o i BRSO A B Y T
5 4 B B 205 ¥ R AR 5 T
Azl g > 7 E PR AE B R
5 T A 4% 1 G RE k1 % 8
P 2 7 2R B A A AR 4 B
Al R RERERR o Ui £R MR IR
W 25 2 B A2 Lb 3 A8 11 B i R
P BURF S2 A 2 18R 4 B %
At A BH Bl TE A T LAERR
DA J2 e A A [ 468 9% 1 75 2 A
TN o BLAh > 5% IR 4e 35 4% 48
BB Z A B E R AT
R Y H A AR R A N A
B BB ¥ 2 A e R B A 4
B &

o MBS TR BRI S R e R o

(o) R&7ETH A i L i AR L9 T
I - DASE RO R 48 4R 1 e
e o R AU Y B AR S A AR
o PR L A AR 2 A5 A X
5 o AR Tl i o M A T R0 LR 4R
B AR i e R 2 M WSO B A
AR — > o

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###ZRER Q7

an

M €102 Hodey [enuuy



-1
(-7}

M €107 Hodey [enuuy

W

ra M RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE

ZE-=F=ZA=+—HILEFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment

Property and equipment including leasehold land and
hotel complex held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Buildings, other than hotel complex, held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts,
being the fair value less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at

the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of
the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation

surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or fair
value of items of property and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment — continued

Items in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
items are classified to the appropriate categories of property
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other items, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

3.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Investment properties — continued

The Group transfers its properties from investment
properties to property and equipment and prepaid lease
payments at fair value when there is a change in use

evidenced by commencement of own-occupation.

Investment properties classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the investment property is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. The Group must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification. Investment properties classified as

held for sale are measured using the fair value model.

Inventories

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,

first-out method.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated costs of completion and the

estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The cost of properties under development for sale includes
land cost, construction cost and other direct development

expenditure.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

3.

HE_ZEZ—=F="A=1t—HILtFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

TEEHBRR-&

BERE

Wl ~ R SRR S B EE (B
1= 1Ry [H] -l 05 AT 1 5 52 10 98 BB 1 2
HE) HAEEAL 2 M ERA > 'ImA
GHEZEA AHEZTEEC KK
58 BT A 4588 ik s 1 o AR E
A T AR & G M B ST R R
P 2 BB - & 85 ER R
FEEA W B RA B -

P A7 Al 8 8 B AR — M A AR ) ) A
15 46 il RE o

Bi1R

FIT 45 BR S $5 B I E A<} A TE R A E A
TEH 22 HaA0 o

B Ry AR A T T 22 AR 47 B IR R B Yk A
AL o JE R dan A1) LA 5 4 T W 4 R
Hh BT i [ A 18 AN T > T R R R
AN B A 7 A 4 2 R RR B B AT B Y
S S I A S I N T 7 3 S
BLZIAH o A5 R E I BUE A R
T R A A B R SR b
AR A B B A -

0 T o TEL 5 AL A WA S AR P L
A 2 MR T (L % R SR i A A
ot Ak 22 T IR 22 LT AfE AR o AR SE B TA B
B30 W LT A ME R B W 2 B AR
iR o 0 A ot TH A O 8 LT A AT
B IRF 25 BLAERE > 3l LA AT BE Hh B W] A
R Ry 2 S4B 2 R SRR s A A R
IR o R R R E
B LA JER] i it e H A 2 % A
5| 85 2 B IR 25 L R 2 % e R B 5
i M~ IR AN Bk A RS 6
PR MR

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###ZRER Q7

(-]

M €102 Hodey [enuuy



=J
(—

M €107 Hodey [enuuy

W

ra M RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Z=

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Taxation — continued

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. Intangible assets of the Group which
have indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in

respect of impairment of non-financial assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVIPL”) and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest

income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at

FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future; or

* it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

i it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets. Fair

value is determined in the manner described in note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables including accounts receivable, loans and
advances, deposits, other receivables, amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders and bank balances are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Accounts receivable and loans and advances that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable and loans and advances
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants and options issued by the Company to be
settled by issuing a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments for a fixed amount of cash are equity
instruments. On initial recognition, these warrants and
options are recognised at fair value in share option and
warrant reserve. Upon exercise of the warrants and options
and the allotment of new shares, the cash proceeds received
are recognised in share capital and share premium, and the
related share option and warrant reserve is reclassified to

share premium.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an

effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
accounts payable, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition — continued

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to suppliers/service providers

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the goods or services received are recognised as expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services

qualify for recognition as assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they

may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease under that standard.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above) —

continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss

is treated as a revaluation increase under that standard.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
lease in which the entire lease is classified as operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leaschold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for
as property and equipment, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease

is classified as an operating lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

3.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currencies — continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group using exchange rates at the rate of prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a jointly controlled entity that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and short term time deposits with an original

maturity of three months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the management has made various estimates based on
past experience, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements within the next financial

year are disclosed below.

Impairment losses on loans and advances and accounts

receivable

The Group periodically reviews its loans and advances and
accounts receivable to assess whether impairment losses
exist. In determining whether impairment losses should be
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the Group has individually evaluated its loans
and advances and accounts receivable for impairment after
taking into account the value of the underlying collateral
of each borrower, and the latest financial position and
other information available of those borrowers in default of
settlement to determine the net present value of expected
future cash inflow. If the financial conditions of the
clients of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make repayments, additional
impairment losses may be required. As at 31st March, 2013,
the carrying amount of loans and advances and accounts
receivable are HK$93,660,000 (2012: HK$70,185,000)
and HK$1,456,675,000 (2012: HK$1,472,151,000),
net of allowance for impaired debts of HK$18,000
(2012: HK$7,137,000) and HK$15,965,000 (2012:
HK$15,937,000), respectively.

HE_ZEZ—=F="A=1t—HILtFE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued
Fair value of financial instruments

As described in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company use their
judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments that are not quoted in an active
market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied. As at 31st March, 2013 and
2012, debt securities and convertible notes designated as
financial assets at FVTPL and derivatives are determined
based on valuation techniques that incorporate assumptions
that are not entirely supported by market observable data.
The carrying amount of the debt securities and convertible
notes are HK$16,613,000 (2012: HK$14,134,000) and
HK$19,487,000 (2012: HK$9,184,000) respectively, while
the carrying amount of the derivatives as at 31st March,
2013 is nil (2012: HK$1,710,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st March,
2013, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$15,441,000
(2012: HK$15,441,000). No impairment loss (2012:
HK$79,529,000) was recognised during the year, details of

the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 23.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued
Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong
Kong were determined by an independent firms of
professional valuers and by the directors of the Company.
The valuation performed was arrived at by reference
to recent market prices for similar properties at similar
locations with total fair value of HK$43,600,000 (2012:
HK$20,000,000) as at 31st March, 2013. For the
investment properties located outside Hong Kong, the total
fair value as at 31st March, 2013 was HK$1,322,000,000
(2012: HKS$1,542,793,000) and investment properties
with fair value of HK$1,322,000,000 (2012:
HK$1,479,900,000) was determined based on valuations
conducted by independent firms of professional valuers
using generally accepted property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions. No investment
properties classified as held for sale is held as at 31 March
2013. Investment properties classified as held for sale with
fair value of HK$62,893,000 as at 31 March 2012 was
valued by reference to the transaction price agreed with
an independent third party of the Group. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result
in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount of

gain or loss reported in profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31st March, 2013, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
HK$169,658,000 (2012: HK$239,270,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are more than expected, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

recognition takes place.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders and bank
borrowings as disclosed in notes 34 and 35 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital as disclosed in note 38, reserves and retained
earnings as disclosed in consolidated statement of changes
in equity. The management reviews the capital structure
by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SF(FR)R throughout both years.
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For the year ended 31st March, 201

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. EM T A
Categories of financial instruments KELRMIT A
2013 2012
—E—= TR TR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Fa% it
Financial assets G VA
Fair value through profit or loss L. /N fﬁfﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ R
— held for trading —H1EHE 3,698 29,797
— designated — 82 50,050 38,850
Loans and receivables (including B 3K S W R T (LS
cash and cash equivalents) e kBE%EEER) 2,017,598 2,019,847
Financial liabilities & Rl & i
Amortised cost KEHE £ A 1,080,276 1,180,729
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEERREEEERKE

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders, derivatives, accounts receivable, loans and
advances, deposit, bank balances, accounts payable,
bank borrowings and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
y y

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to accounts receivable, bank balances and bank
borrowings. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to convertible notes and debt securities
held by the Group. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the Group
closely manages its exposure arising from margin financing
and other lending activities undertaken by allowing an
appropriate margin on the interest received and paid by the

Group.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets
and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk

management section of this note.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate
and HIBOR arising from the Group’s variable interest rate

instruments.

As at 31st March, 2013, if the interest rate of accounts
receivable and bank borrowings had been 50 basis points
(2012: 50 basis points) higher/lower, the Group’s loss
before taxation would decrease/increase by HK$5,395,000
(2012: HK$4,621,000).

No sensitivity analysis has been presented for the bank
balances of the Group as they are not subject to significant

cash flow interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk — continued
Fair value interest rate risk

As at 31st March, 2013, the convertible notes and debt
securities subject to fair value interest rate risk bear fixed
interest at rates ranging from 3% to 15% (2012: 8% to
15%).

If the market interest rate had been 50 basis points (2012:
50 basis points) higher/lower, and held other variables
constant, the Group’s loss before taxation for the year
would increase/decrease by HK$37,000/HK$37,000 (2012:
HK$138,000/HK$140,000), as a result of the changes in

the fair value of financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The sensitivity analyses above are prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the fair
value of convertible notes and debt securities depends on

certain inter-dependent variables.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities, convertible notes and
investment fund. The directors of the Company manage
the exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of equity
investments and investment fund. The fair value of these
financial instruments will be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the changes in the closing
market bid prices of the relevant listed equity securities and

quoted price of the investment fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —
continued

Market risk — continued

Other price risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period. If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 20% (2012: 20%) higher/lower, and held other
variables constant, the Group’s loss before taxation for
the year would decrease/increase by HK$7,250,000/
HK$6,707,000 (2012: HK$8,724,000), as a result of
changes in the fair value of listed equity securities and

investment fund.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currency of
the respective entities and, in the case of Macau Pataca
(“MOP”), the exposure is limited as MOP is pegged
to HK$. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been

presented on the currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when due. Impairment allowances are made for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.
Significant changes in the economy or environment of
a particular industry segment could result in losses that
are different from those provided for at the end of the
reporting period. Management therefore carefully manages

its exposure to credit risk.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes
in relation of accounts receivable, loans and advances,
convertible notes and debt securities by placing limits on
the amount of risk accepted in relation to any borrower
or issuer, or groups of borrowers, and to geographical and
industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving

basis and subject to a quarterly or more frequent review.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis
of the ability of borrowers, issuers and potential borrowers
to meet interest and principal repayment obligations and by
changing these lending limits where appropriate. Exposure
to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral

and corporate and personal guarantees.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited as the
counterparties are banks with high credit rating assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. In addition, for contingency purposes, clean

loan facilities are put in place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HEAREEEEREE &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued HEELEE &
Liquidity and interest risk tables i B & R F 5 b 9 7
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining N SRR AS A AR R R
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the P R RS HIR o N RRESE
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up il A A U B B 4 U i (A A I T
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities B EREREZHY) MR - FEM
according to the earliest date on which the Group can WABEAERHEH & - [ RIEBHHE
be required to pay. The tables include both interest and Uit AR | — 4 B A U OR 2 AR T
principal cash flows. The difference between the “Total B —5 2 B 240 > R
undiscounted cash flows” column and the “Carrying G R AR T BB R A LB &R
amount at the end of reporting period” column represents o M A B B E U O IR A B A
the future contractual cash flows attributable to the fE A S5 A AR L 6 2 BRI (A -
instrument included in the maturity analysis which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Carrying
Weighted More than amount at
average  Repayable 1 month Total  the end of
effective on  Lessthan andless  More than undiscounted  reporting
interest rate demand Imonth  than I year Lyear  cash flows petiod
mE¥HE  AEEX -fiRz AERRE RASER
RERIZ kg -fiAn - BE-Ff REAE ZREE
% HKS$ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
[0 Tk Tt Fikx T Tt Tt
At 315t March, 2013 R-2-Z£=f=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 £ HE &
Accounts payable TR 00 £025% 126849 169,199 3707 - 975 219974
Other accounts payable HAbEMIRE - 15,220 1,001 - - 16,221 16,221
Amounts due to non-controlling KB R SR
shareholders - 431,346 - - - 431,846 431,346
Bank borrowings RiThER HIBOR + 2% - 416219000 170360 343513 330467
FiERIA
& Mo
573915 184,362 162,728 170,360 1,091,365 1,080,276
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BHEzE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—BHIt&E
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA-—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HEAREEEEREEX &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued HEELEE—E
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued it B B R F 5 B 9 2 — A
Carrying
Weighted Mote than amount at
average  Repayable 1 month Total  the end of
effective on  Lessthan andless ~ More than undiscounted  reporting
interest rate demand Imonth  than I year Lyear  cash flows period
mEYY  EREX -ERZ AERAE REEER
LGRS k&8 -EAm -En  BB-F  REAR CREE
% HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
[ip:A T Tk Fikn T Tk Tk
At 31st March, 2012 R-2-ZF=A=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ {74 S BEE
Accouns payable JEf 0t £0.25% 129046 125,186 438 - BAET0 254646
Other accounts payable H A ErTRE - 18,001 2,642 - - 20,643 20,643
Amounts due to non-controlling e T
shareholders - 403,713 - - - 403,713 403,713
Bank borrowings Rivfig HIBOR + 2% - B30 156220 34275 51445 5017
FiERIRE
e
550,760 141,758 156,658 344275 1193451 1,180,729

The following table details the Group’s expected maturity
for its financial assets. The tables below have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of
the financial assets, including interest that will be earned
on those assets, except for those financial assets which are
not repayable on demand, the analysis is based on when
the Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur. The
difference between the “Total undiscounted cash flows”
column and the “Carrying amount at the end of reporting
period” column represents the possible future cash flows
attributable to the instrument included in the maturity
analysis which are not included in the carrying amount of
the financial asset on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The inclusion of information on financial assets is
necessary in order to understand the Group’s liquidity risk
management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and

liability basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — AR EEEERRE &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued EELEE—E
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued it B B R F 5 B 9 2 — A
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average  Repayable Between Tol  theend of
effective o Lessthan Ito  Jmonths  Between  Between Over undiscounted  reporting
interestrate ~ demand  Imonth  Imomths  tolyer ltolyeas 2-Syeas Syars  Undated  cash flows period
nETH  AEER Z8A AEREE REEER

Rz k2 -fAm -E=RR E-%F  -ERE  CEEE BBEE RRN MENE  ZREE
% HKSO0 HKSON  HKSOO  HKSO0  HKSON  HKSOW  HKSOM  HKSOM0  HKS0m  HKS00
Bt Tk TER TR T TR TR T e T

At3lst March, 2013 HZ%-ZEZfZ1-8
Non-derivative financial asets HiEoREE
Accounts receivable ] HongKong 1,411,066 40,554 47% 774 - - - - LTI 14667
Prime Rate +
W10 4.25%
FikaBEAE
MEZ45E
Bunk belnces - clentaccouns—— HITA R -FFRF W% 1983M - - - - - - B X/ U 1)
Bank balances - general accounts Bk -—REF
ad csh ke 00% 188141 S 1951 - - - - -6y 36
Loans and advances SR 10% to E245% - 1280 183 10380 3400 § - N | X S 1)
Deposits and other receivables Ha Rt RiGA 1.2% - 1,052 4009 809 015 1915 53,015 - 01415 55,063
Financia ases held ormading — FFEREZ 2RER - - - - - - - - 3,098 3,698 3,698
Financial asets designated RERRAAERRS
wat FVTPL LEYAT ) T - - - - - - - S BB BB B0
1,797,579 48,860 30,152 105,384 4015 1,995 53,015 17648 2058648 2,035,246
Other financial assets BfhoHEE
Financial assets designated FEBRALERER
watFVTPL EdbRER Moo £15% - - B 1) - 8426 - - BY 360

1,797,579 48,860 30,152 135,89 4015 10421 33,015 17648 209758 2071346
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HEAREEEEREEX &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued HEELEE-E
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued i B B R F 5 B 5 7 — A
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average  Repayable Between Tol  theend of
effective o Lessthan Ito  Jmonths  Between  Between Over undiscounted ~ reporting
interestrate ~ demand  Imonth  Imomths  tolyer ltolyeas  2-Syeas Syars  Undated  cash flows period
nETy  ZREX =R AEREE REEER

Rz k2 -fAm -E=RR E-%F  -ERE CEEE BBEE RRN MEME  ZREE
% HKSO0 HKSON  HKSO0  HKSO0  HKSON  HKSOW  HKSOM  HKSOM0  HKS0m0  HKS00
B fir T TR TR T TR TR T TR TEx

At31st March, 2012 HZ%-ZEZRZ1-B
Non-derivative financial asets HiteREE
Accounts receivable BlRE HongKong 1,433,742 38,586 bl - - - - SRR 1055 AR /A
Prime Rate +
124% to 4.25%
T
MUERLE
Bunk balances - clentaccounss—— SRfr - BFIRF 0% 1709 - - - - - - - I
Bank balances - general accounts fiisk-—REF
ad ash J¥53 0% 1590 S0 1935 - - - - R K K
Loans and advances LoVt 10% to £24% - 7,809 1,126 70,604 1,966 - - - 81,505 70,18
Depositsand other ecevabls RERLRRER % to £349% B N U ] 903 60 180 B N Vi (1
Amount due from non-contolling — FERBA
shareholders - 5,889 - - - - - - - 5,88 5,885
Financial asses held for trading HEEE ARGR - - - - - - - - 28,087 28,087 28,087
Financial assets designated FEBRAERME
wat FVTPL Bz el - - - - - - - - B B B
1,769,959 103,977 77 71507 1,566 1,800 53,750 8619 208151 2063466
Other financial assets AfeREE
Financial asets designated EEARLMERER
wuFVTPL kD EHNE 8o Eisk - - - R 1)) - - - BB B
Financial asses held or trading BFEE ARGE - - - - - - - - 1,710 1,710 1,710

1,769,959 103977 347 71307 30751 1,800 33750 6309 L84 208849
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

the fair values of listed equity securities are determined

with reference to quoted market bid prices;

the fair value of unlisted investment fund is established
by reference to the prices quoted by the fund
administrator based on quoted bid prices of underlying

listed securities;

the fair values of convertible notes, debt securities and
derivatives are estimated by generally accepted pricing
model such as discounted cash flow analysis, which
incorporate assumptions not entirely supported by
observable market prices or rates. The assumptions
include the discount rate adjusted for the specific risks
of the issuers and/or probability of qualified exit for
valuation as at 31st March, 2013 and 2012; and

the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current

market transactions as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded

at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for

identical assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair values — continued

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices).

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market

data (unobservable inputs).

B2 Z—=F=-A=+—BULEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6. EWMIE-—&
ARE-E
o BB AEEHE B — B
Tl SR AR A > ik VB A A
(I A% ) i 2 (BD F 1 4 7 A7
HE ) BB AR 1 R A5 2
S -

o H=JEAREEHETIERE AN
AR PR B T S R (LR
A BUR) < EE A A E T

ARt -
31st March, 2013
R-E—-=§=A=+—-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—IE EZE =B #et

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$ 000
FERT TERT FTERT TERT

Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREREZRER
ZERMEE
Held-for-trading investments FEEE 2 E 3,698 - - 3,698
Investments designated 8 E By He A AU R £
as at FVTPL TR 2 & - 13,950 36,100 50,050
Total HEt 3,698 13,950 36,100 53,748
31st March, 2012
N E—-THEZH =T —H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
g W 5= )E Bt
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
T T T 0 T
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREREZRER
ZERMEE
Held-for-trading investments RIERECRE 28,087 - - 28,087
Derivatives fid TH - - 1,710 1,710
Investments designated 8 7E B H A SUE R R i
as at FVTPL R 2 % & - 15,532 23,318 38,850
Total i 28,087 15,532 25,028 68,647

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the

current year.

N S BB TR 2 M A g
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HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITAE—/&
Fair values — continued ARE-E
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of THEEF=ELALBEENE K
financial assets
Investments
designated
Derivatives as at FVTPL Total
EER
BARE
RIBRER
fTETA ZRE st
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000
T T T T T T
As at Ist April, 2011 BEF——FMA—H - 77,038 77,038
Disposals & - (44,314) (44,314)
Conversion to listed shares [8 N - (35,743) (35,743)
Purchases i3 1,773 12,627 14,400
Fair value gains in profit or loss AR LS 22 el Ik 42 (63) 13,710 13,647
As at 31st March, 2012 AE-THE=ZA=1—H 1,710 23,318 25,028
Redemption i o] (1,164) - (1,164)
Purchases 3= - 4,800 4,800
Fair value gains in profit or loss iS5 kAN I € (540) 7,982 7,436
As at 31st March, 2013 REF—==A=1+—H - 36,100 36,100
Of the total gains or losses for the year, a realised loss of TEACAE B Al w5 sl s P > B AT
HK$546,000 relates to derivatives (2012: realised profit AT HZEEHEHE 546,000 00
of HK$434,000 relating to the convertible notes). Fair (CF— T FEHBREERE "
value gains or losses on the these financial instruments are % F F5434,000470) o B4R T A
included in “other gains and losses”. 28 R g SO BT A T H Ak a8 K
KR ] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—-"F-A-T-BHLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

7. REVENUE 7. W
2013 2012
—E—=F TE AR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FAx Filh e
Brokerage commission 28 A A 4 32,533 49,033
Underwriting and placing commission £ § 5 it B 1] 4 7,354 10,763
Interest income from: FLE AR -
Loans and receivables B 3K I i 3k A
— clients —-%F 128,085 132,113
— financial institutions — BA S M 1,094 264
— clearing house — &5 E BT 1 1
Financial assets designated 8 7€ My HE A AR H A
as at FVTPL it 8 < Rl
— convertible notes — ] i A 887 826
— debt securities — & B a6 75 2,243 -
Clearing and handling fee income HELTHEBRA 3,066 3,576
Advisory fee income FHEE- JVON 480 400
Property rental income EEEA L ON 3,453 9,125
Hotel accommodation and other T T A3 i B A IR S e A
services income 191,796 179,394
Casino related service income i 4 355 R IR R 5 LA 172,575 366,612
543,567 752,107
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rE MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into seven operating

divisions, namely, hotel and entertainment, broking,

securities margin financing, money lending, corporate

finance, property development and investments. These

divisions are the basis on which Board of Directors of

the Company, being the chief operating decision maker,

review the operating results and financial information. The

principal activities of these divisions are as follows:

Hotel and

entertainment

Broking

Securities margin

financing

Money lending

Corporate finance

Property development

Investments

operations of hotel, marketing
and business promotion of a
casino, provision of other
related services and facilities;
and holding of investment
property which is a portion of a

property situated in Macau

provision of stockbroking,

futures and options broking

provision of securities margin

financing

provision of mortgage and

consumer loans

provision of corporate advisory

services

development of properties for

sale

holding of investment properties
situated in Hong Kong and

Taiwan and financial instruments

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

*  all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
club membership, taxation recoverable and deferred

tax assets.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other

than taxation payable and deferred tax liabilities.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain finance costs, certain staff costs and
certain other expenses, incurred for strategic planning

by the Group.
*  no inter-segment revenue/expense in the Group for the

year of 2013 and 2012.

Segment information about these divisions is presented

below.

BE-_T—-"F-A-T-BHLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

8. DEER &

KEE 03 T 2 B whEUR S GRS BT A 2 AR
S & AR o J B> WA B
Lo 8 1] 2 B3 i

o BREEEE - T LI KO I
BLIE AR Ab - B AT W 1 B4
B -

o BRME AT B T R SE B I B LA
IR IR o VR R g

o BRWCA SR ] 2 SR W R E T Bk 1 2
HB Ay B R Ry B TAS LA
L2 EB A Ho At B S AL > B A i A B
s 15 2 23 FC 25 ARG 3 T o

s AKHR _F-=HFERF
— AR BN A 3 B ] 2 4 B
io

Bb A AR P 2 0 B8 EORL R AR e
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rE MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. DHEMN—&
Segment revenue and results PHMERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PAR J 35 70 T il B R84 o iR 2
results by reportable and operating segments: N U E S E S T
For the year ended 31st March, 2013 BE_F—=F=H=1+—HILFE
Securities
Hotel and margin Money  Corporate  Property
entertainment Broking financing lending finance  development  Investments Consolidated
EER 25RE

R4 g8 oRE BE GERE  NEER R A
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tt  TEx  Tkx  FEx  TEx  FEx TEx Tix

SEGMENT REVENUE 2k 368,103 43243 114,573 13,460 516 - 3,672 543,567

SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT 73 (#548) i (236,767) 2,039 114,422 13,420 (137) - (74 (107,097)

Unallocated corporate ANREEERR

expenses (7,027)
Loss before taxation Rk & (114129)
For the year ended 31st March, 2012 By X — F=H=+—HIFE

Securities
Hotel and margin Money  Corporate  Property
entertainment Broking financing lending finance development  Investments Consolidated
BER anRE

R®  EE  tRR  HE 0ERR WERR  RR 54
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK§'000
e FER TEE TER TEE TR TEE TER

SEGMENT REVENUE THkE 553,978 63,624 122,502 9,587 6 - 1,980 752,107

SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT 245 (B#8) &7 (356,459) 10,858 118,806 4514 (198) 18,041 (10516)  (214,954)

Unallocated corporate KARAEER
expenses (12,308

Loss before taxation iR (227,262)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

As at 315t March, 2013

B2 Z—=F=-A=+—BULEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

8. PHER &
FPBEEREE
DLF % 40 T O RO 4 AR i
75 G 7 A I AT

W ZF—ZF=ZHA=1—H

Securities
Hotel and margin Money  Corporate  Property
entertainment Broking financing lending finance development  Investments Consolidated
BER BERE
R &R tHE HE CERE  NERR RE &4
HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$’ 000
Tk T T T i T T T
SEGMENT ASSETS THEE 2,833,403 344115 1,510,439 94,564 6,988 - 152552 4,942,061
Unallocated assets FNRERE 7,173
Consolidated total assets EABEME 4949234
SEGMENT LIABILITIES 2 H&E 786,529 185,991 113,559 275 71 - 74 1,086,499
Unallocated liabilities FHRAE 141,642
Consolidated total liabilities %4 £ 8% 1,228,141
As at 31st March, 2012 Wz T E=ZH =4 —H
Securities
Hotel and margin Money  Corporate ~ Property
entertainment Broking financing lending finance development  Investments Consolidated
BER BERE
R &R tHE HE CERE  WERR RE &a
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
ik T Tibx T Tibx Tibx T ik
SEGMENT ASSETS APEE 3100466 328209 1,566,436 70,999 6,790 9200 183362 5274462
Unallocated assets FNREE 8,634
Consolidated total assets GABEAE 5,283,096
SEGMENT LIABILITIES 28 935,416 134,485 116,398 618 70 200 52 1187759
Unallocated liabilities FHEAR 171,692
Consolidated total liabilicies %4 & (6 44% 1,359,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BHE_Z—=F-A=+—HLHEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

8.

=

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information

For the year ended 31st March, 2013

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit

(loss) or segment assets:

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Additions of property and equipment

Additions of construction in progress

Consumables used

Depreciation of property and
equipment

Reversal of impairment loss
in respect of loans and advances

Allowance of impairment loss on
loans to securities margin clients

Gain on disposal of property
and equipment

Surplus on revaluation of property
and equipment

Fair value (decrease) increase on
investment properties

Fair value increase on financal
assets at FVTPL

Fair value decrease on financial
assets held for trading

Commission expense

AR A (B 8) &
NIRRT AZE

A1 6 R 2

EY T YA
ERIRZRE
GEAY]

UEY T AN

LEVETva i
B
#RRELEFENL
BEERE

6 3% Bt 2

WEREH AR

BEMFELNAE
()
BLAEREREDL
SREENAREEM
A ELY v
MEED

LEB

Hotel and

entertainment

BERBRS
HKS'000
T

38,610
11,973

6,002
25,969

96,170

(157,900)

113,215

Broking
&4
HK$’ 000
T

1,583

4213

755

207

1,386

10,085

TEHER-&

H 7 2R & ¥

#BE _F == ="+ —HILFE

Money Corporate
lending finance
HE  LERR
HKS 000 HKS 000
T TR
- 3

(34) -

[nvestments
b4
HKS$'000
T

—

2,672

7,100

6,400

(10,259)

Consolidated
&4

HK$ 000
T

38,610
13573
6,002
25,969
103,058
(34)
755
226
1,386
(150,800)

6,400

(10,259)
123,300

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—-"F-A-T-BHLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

DERE R - &
H {5 380 — 4

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8.

Other segment information — continued

For the year ended 31st March, 2012

#ME-F - A~ HILFE

Hotel and Money  Corporate Property
entertainment Broking lending finance  development  Investments Consolidated
EERRS L HE hEEE  NEER k& 8
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK§'000
Fibx Fibx Fitx T T Fitx Fikx
Amounts included in the sHEH A (618 5
measure of segment profit NG AZTE
(loss) or segment assets:
Additions of prepaid lease REREMNHENE
payments 3,043 - - - - - 3,043
Amortisation of prepaid lease HA R B R 2
payments 38,504 - - - - - 38,504
Additions of property and WERREZRE
equipment 7,166 1,421 - - - 112 8,699
Additions of construction ERIRZRE
in progress 4971 - - - - - 4,971
Consumables used HHEME 35402 - - - - - 35,42
Depreciation of property WERRHELIE
and equipment 98,309 5,302 - 3 - 2,669 106,283
Allowance of impairment loss EHRATZHE
in respect of loans and BRE
advances - - 4469 - - - 4469
Allowance of impairment ERREREFETL
loss on loans to securities HEBRRMK
margin clients - 3,234 - - - - 3,034
Gain on disposal of properties i E SRR G
under development - - - - 18,094 - 18,094
Gain on disposal of property iH EE R
and equipment 267 - - - - - 267
Surplus on revaluation of UEI TP LT R
property and equipment - 3,067 - - - - 3,067
Fair value (decrease) increase S EFANIN i}
on investment properties (%) s (145,479) - - - - 20,944 (124,539)
Fair value decrease on BRARERREEDL
financial assets at FVTPL SHERNARERD - - - - - (30,310) (30,310)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZHERR 79,529 - - - - - 79,529
Commission expense &R 319,173 14,488 - - - - 333,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-Z-—=F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8.
Geographical information

The Group’s hotel and entertainment operations are located
in Macau while other segments’ operations are primarily
located in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the majority of the
Group’s revenue is derived from Hong Kong and Macau
based on geographical location of operation of the Group.
In addition, the Group’s non-current assets amounting
to HK$175,965,000 (2012: HK$228,376,000) and
HK$2,730,696,000 (2012: HK$2,949,098,000) are located
in Hong Kong and Macau respectively.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31st March, 2013 and 2012, there
were no customers contributing over 10% of the Group’s

total revenue.

DEHER —&E

b 15 & R

A T 2 T T 5 4 A R IR
T L Ath 43 5B 4 38 3 A N o
W s AR R A A [ g BT AR 2 Hh B A
B AREEZ W FEK A HS LR
Mo I Ah > A< B 67 7 7 v IR 2
I B E E 2 & F A 75175,965,000
Wt (& — T 4F £ 228,376,000% 7T)
}%2,730,696,000% 76 (= F — T 4F ¢
2,949,098,0007 5) °

FBREIEEFZER
NEE—EF =R _F—-"F=H
=t —HIEFRE > W EF /RS
AEB AN E10%2 BB ©

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/OTHER 9. HihE B A " Hithlh#F R
GAINS AND LOSSES B8
2013 2012
—E—=5F TE— AR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T#I0
9a. Other operating income 9a. Hh&EEWA
Bank interest income SRAT A Bl A 76 72
Sundry income, including HAb A > L35 i B
unwinding of imputed interest AR NS 6,777 17,186
6,853 17,258

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#Z=RERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Z=

HE-_T—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/OTHER 9. Hh&EEWA "HWHBER

GAINS AND LOSSES - continued EBE—-&
2013 2012
—E-=F TE TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTER Tt
9b. Other gains and losses 9b. Httz R EE
Fair value change on investment BEWEN AT
properties (150,800) (124,535)
Gain on disposal of properties HEREERTYE
under development for sale Z W AR - 18,094
Gain on disposal of property B W 26 K 2 iR
and equipment 226 267
Net realised losses on error trades BT G 2 BB
Jies 18 1 2 (1)
Fair value change on financial A EN S AR EEE)
assets
— held for trading —fHEEH (10,259) (26,925)
— designated at FVTPL — 608 Sy AR SRR
18 4 e 6,400 (3,385)
Net exchange gain (loss) ME Se i 4 (s $2) 5 A 2 (180)
(154,433) (136,665)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

11.

—l
(—}
(-}

10. STAFF COSTS 10. ET AR
2013 2012
—E—-=fF R — AR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT TH T
Staff costs, including directors’ BITA (BFHEEME)
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits 3 4 B oA A 86,417 89,248
Contributions to retirement 3B R A A 5 ) AR 2
benefits scheme 1,116 1,204
Share-based payments DL By BB 2
(note 39(b)) 2N (K 739(b)) 472 2,444
88,005 92,896
FINANCE COSTS 11. @& & A
2013 2012
—E—=5F TE— TR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx AP
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts R A NBBE R
wholly repayable within five years BATE R P L2 F B 10,711 15,285
Interest on clients” accounts KPP ZFE 43 49
10,754 15,334

¥ €102 Hodey [enuuy
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12. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation has been arrived

at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration

(Reversal) recognition of impairment
loss, net (included in other operating
income/other expenses)
— loans and advances
— loans to securities margin clients

Operating lease rentals in respect
of rented premises

Rental income from investment
properties

Less: Outgoings

Gaming promoters’ commission
borne by the Group

Casino related service expenses
(included in other expenses)

Commission expenses for financial

services operations

i il R AL 2 1 BR
(FFA) T H1 &5

A% R A <
JE e 1R 2 (H% 1)) e R v
(FEAH A A
HoAte 5 52)
— FERR I BGK
— i IR PR A T K
g ¥ REMHHE

BOEY EM WA

W S

AL F RIS 2 R
A A

5% %% 355 AR I Ml 5 B S
(T A HAt B 52)

S ey s PA I EA B

e TSR R M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—-"F-A-T-BHLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

12. Bi Al &5 18

2013
—E-=F
HKS$’000
TR

3,259

(34)
755

67

(3,453)
1,846

113,215

65,323

10,085

2012
TE AR
HKS$’000
AR

4,029

4,469
3,234

709

(9,125)
1,846

319,173

87,261

14,488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-2-=F=A=t-ALEE

BlE—

For the year ended 31st March, 2013

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the 10 (2012:

B.EERTHRABREENE

B AT AT 108 (L F— 4 12

w—d
—l
(—]

Y45 €102 Hoday [enuuy

12) directors and the Chief Executive Officer were as

) HHRATEREA N ZFHMT

follows:
Chief
Executive
Directors Officer
EH [k
Cham Shum Liu Kwong Lung Li Sau
Hung Wai Ho, Kin Wai,  Chun Ning, Man Chi Kit, Hon (Chiang Hung, Hung
Hon Man Anthony Frankie Wilfred ~ Kong Yui Victor Lui Chun Yi Edly  SuiKwan Toul
HEX ERE 4R B4E THs Bik i H ThE 35k b g
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
Tk T T T T T T T T Tk T
(note i) (note 1)
W i)
2013 g-cE
Fees ik - - 4 4 - - 8
Other emoluments: Ll
Salaries and other benefis H2IURA 17 306 312 - - - 975 7 2,087
Contributions to retirement ROk
benefit scheme HELE 6 15 15 - - - - 15 51
Commission i3 - - 9% - - - - - 9%
Tota remunetaion fuES 13 3l {15 - 4 i 975 - B 230
Chief
Executive
Directors Officer
£z fgas
Cham Shum Wong Liu Kwong Lung Li Sau
Hung ~ WaiHo,  KinWai,  Sheung Cheng  Chun Ning, Man  ChiKi, Hon  Chiang Hung, Hung
HonMan  Anthony  Frakie ~ Kwong ~ WaiHo  Wilfred  KongYai Victor L Chunli Eddy  SuiKwan Toul
HEX HER  SBE DMI EBR  BHE  XEM  BER  EEE IRR  3RE MEM g
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 — HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T T T TEx T TEx T TEx T T Thr TEx Tix
(nteiii) ~ (note i) (note i) (note i) (note ) (note iv)
(i) (i) W ) W (W
0 -g-2f
Fees ?@ﬁ - - - 4 L) - - 8
Other emoluments: Llome
Salaries and other benefis — F4 R AR 117 306 312 0 U - 975 - - 37 2131
Contributions o retrement & A&
beneft scheme BEL 6 12 12 1 - - - - - - - 12 8
Commisson e - - 128 - - - - - - - - - 1%
Tota remuneraion ine 13 318 £ il 4 - i {1 975 - - B 236
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is also the Chief Executive Officer of Tk F d 5'5’5]5)]?2% RONFEATHAER -
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include jcfgz% 2 Uk e A P 4 A F5 A D AT I 44
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive B E R IRE 2 B4 -

Officer.

Neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the directors

BT HARREFRNBE —F =

waived any emoluments in the year ended 31st March, 2013 EN - E—-"F=H=1+—H Jjgﬁffh
and 2012. AT AT P 4 -

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

notes:

(i)  The director was appointed on 28th April, 2011 and resigned
on 8th June, 2012.

(i)  The director was appointed on 28th April, 2011 and resigned
on 2nd April, 2012.

(iii) The directors resigned on 28th April, 2011.

(iv) The directors were appointed on 28th April, 2011.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2012: one) was director of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The details of the
emoluments of the four (2012: four) individuals are as

follows:

Salaries, commission and other benefits #r4 ~ i 4 S H Ath 18
Contributions to retirement benefit AR R AR I 8 R

scheme

BHE-ZT—==H=+—H LF’*
For the year ended 31st March, 201

BEERITHABREEN =
— &

MfEt -

() HEFR-F - FNAZ+ /A
ZARA I —F — AN ANH BHE -

(i) #WwEHPK_F——FNHA = /\HE
TATW Y —F— ZF P H — 0 BT -

(i) ZEEHOR T ——FMWH _+ N
HBEHE -

(iv) ZEEHRB -F——FMH /A
BRAT -

BEME

ZIK%EETI H e 38 8 9N L L4 — for
TE A ) AN > M

ﬁ?ﬁ*%ﬁﬁ/}t)‘( HERm Az (—F——

A ) E RN L 2 e R

2013 2012
—®—= SE— U
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR T
2,804 3,334

41 20

2,845 3,354
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEBERTHABIREEN =

155 2 B A 7 DL S E

Number of employees

EE%E
2013 2012
—E—=f& T TUE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 %% JC 221,000,000 JC 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 %21,500,000%% 7T - 1
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals (including directors
of the Company and employees) and other directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

AN A AR TSI R 1) A7 A o s P A
AL (BFEARFEE R ER) KH
b HE = SO AT AT B 8 o AR 2 05 i B
A B 2 BT BE o Sk T B
T A 11 2z

14. TAXATION 14. B4 78
2013 2012
—_E-=F TR TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx THTT
Current tax: R 3 A 1
Hong Kong s 19,480 23,816
Taiwan A 715 35
20,195 23,851
Overprovision in prior years DLAE 4F 1 B B3 A
Hong Kong i (30) (46)
Deferred taxation (note 36) TESERLIH (M 7E36)
Current year AR JE (25,378) (23,824)
(5,213) (19)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. Taiwan Enterprise
Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years. The Macau Complementary Income
Tax is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A

s R AR B T He AR A BE 2 A R RE R
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BHEzE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—BHIt&E
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

14. TAXATION - continued 14. Bi1E — &

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the A A J8E A TH B A 4 THI K 7 3R A BRI
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of WsiE 2 FH AN
comprehensive income as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F TE TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx Tt

Loss before taxation i AT s 15 (114,124) (227,262)
Taxation at Hong Kong Profits 2 78 P A5 BB % 16.5%

Tax rate of 16.5% At 5 2 BiIH (18,830) (37,498)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AN R ANBL ST 2 BB R

for tax purpose 1,816 17,605
Tax effect of income not taxable NIERBIMCA Z BT 3 2

for tax purpose (2,022) (3,153)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses A e AT B JE s 1 2

not recognised T 35 5 22 4,679 14,114
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised B F A< ffE 58 2 Bl 1H Ji5 48 (183) (1,286)
Overprovision in prior years AT 4F J55 i 5 43 445 (30) (46)
Reversal of deferred tax liabilities M EREYEL

arising from change in intention . [ DA B8 T 43 [ 30 SiE

of investment properties disposed i I £ - (353)
Effect of different tax rates of A At ) 35 HE i 7 7 2

subsidiaries operating in Wi G 2 ] A AN [m] B

other jurisdictions 2 10,619 10,114
Others Ho At (1,262) 484
Taxation for the year A A R IH (5,213) (19)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

15. DIVIDENDS

Final dividend for prior financial year,
paid — HK1 cent
(2012: HK1 cent) per share
Interim dividend for current
financial year, paid — HK1 cent
(2012: HK1 cent) per share

e EMEAEEZ

15. R E

AR S — B e A1
(o — 4R 1Al

A - A B BUAE BE 2

(T — T4E 1AL

Dividend recognised as distribution

during the year

A4 JIE SR 0 IR 2 JBE

2013 2012
—E—=F TE AR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T#IT
44,735 44,735
44,735 44,735
89,470 89,470

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March,

2013 of HKI cent per share, amounting to approximately
HK$44,735,000 (2012: final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31st March, 2012 of HK1 cent per share, amounting
to approximately HK$44,735,000) has been proposed by
the directors of the Company and is subject to the approval

by the owners of the Company in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

16. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Loss

Loss for the purposes of basic

and diluted loss per share

16.
B8
FHT St 5 SRR A R
i 18 2 i 18

KAFEFERABME T —=F=
H =+ — H k4 R R W % B i
LAl > 54 £544,735,000% 08 (&
— T BE R E=ZA =+ —
H kA B 2 K S 2 B e s Al >
FH 49 £544,735,00095 70) > I ZH A E
Jie J5 RO AT R B b AR ml A N
HEAEE -

BRER

ARy AT N A A B A B

R4 LR MeE RS
2013 2012
—®-=% | %%
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TET T T
(27,629) (144,983)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. LOSS PER SHARE - continued

17.

BHEzE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—BHIt&E
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

16. BREE &

2013 2012
—E—=F TE TR
000 000
T T
Number of shares B EE
Number of ordinary shares for the FHTA w4 R AR K
purposes of basic and diluted b5 48 2 M 5 I A ST 1 B
loss per share 4,473,476 4,473,476

For the years ended 31st March, 2013 and 2012, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding options and/or
warrants since their exercise would result in a decrease in

loss per share.

RBE B SERE— 4
Sb— BB RET &  # 56
W AL S B A 2 ) 2 R A A
W/ SRR M R ST 6 JRIR B
17354 51 05 ol SR -

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. BN HERE
2013 2012
—E—-=5F T AR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH Tt
The Group’s prepaid lease payments AEE 2 HANHE
comprise: AIA LTS -
Leaschold land outside Hong Kong P B IR AN 2 FLE T i
— Medium-term lease — I A 603,635 642,245
Analysed for reporting purpose as: RS E AT IR
Current assets B E 38,957 38,957
Non-current assets IE By E 564,678 603,288
603,635 642,245

The amount represents prepayment of rentals for medium-

term land use rights situated in Macau.

The Group has pledged the above prepaid lease payments
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Details
of the pledge are set out in note 44 to the consolidated

financial statements.

% R QL (oL A TR M 22 o ) o
FREPT AT A A &

A 45 B 519 L it A R B R E LA
1B 2y A B2 B 4R AT 15 B 2 IR A
i o A BEVEL IR 22 FE I O A A B i
B 44 -
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HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 18. MERRHE
Motor Furniture
Leaschold Hotel Leaschold vehicles Office and Other
land Buildings complex  improvements andyacht  equipment fixtures tools Total
EERIES

BELH B EEReR %6 REREE HOERE  GRRXE  RHIR ait
HKSO000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000
Tk Tk T Tk T Tk T T T

COSTORVALUATION ~ RAZfEfE

At Ist Aprl, 2011 REF-—HNA-H 103780 26,449 536,157 343,367 30,887 15,725 26,173 4,089 1125627
Additions NE - - - 4,083 598 1,047 2,38 133 8,699
Transfer from investment BEENE
propertics - - 9,578 - - - - - 9,578
Transker from construction ~ # AR TR
in progress - - - 656 - - - - 656
Adjustment on revaluation T % - 2,653 - - - - - - 2,653
Disposals & - - - - - - () (8.480) (8,483)
At 31st March, 2012 I S
“H=ET—H 103,780 29,102 545,739 348,706 33,485 16,772 28,408 32,742 1,138,730
Additions RE - - - 9,789 524 1,098 2,070 9 13,573
Transfer from construction B HABTHE
in progress - - - 10,973 - - - - 10,973
Adjustment on revaluation T {57 8 - Uk - - - - - - 73
Disposals bk - - - (169) (5,586) - - (13) (5.764)
At31st March, 2013 REZF-=F
=H=+-H 103,780 29,875 545,735 369,303 28,423 17,870 30,478 32,821 1,158,285
Comprising: sk :
At cost fEmA 103,780 - 545,739 369,303 28,423 17,870 30,478 32,821 1,128,410
Atvaluation Hefh (e - 29,875 - - - - - - 2875
103,780 29875 545,735 369,303 28,423 17,870 30478 32,821 1,158,285

DEPRECIATIONAND ~ HERH{E

IMPAIRMENT
Ac Lst Apeil, 2011 REF——FENA—H 14899 - 14,131 30,932 6,900 12187 4371 7853 91,073
Provided for the year FERE 2450 614 27,832 49,430 4,682 1,418 5,744 14,113 106,283
Eliminated on revaluation ERRI%] - (614) - - - - - - (614)
Eliminated on disposals B I B - - - - - - (1) (8,405) (8,406)
Ac 315t March, 2012 RZF-24

EY:ES 17,349 - 41,963 80,362 11,582 13,605 10,114 13,561 188,536
Provided for the year FRER 2450 613 29,749 55,103 3,156 989 4140 6858 103,058
Eliminated on revaluation XGRS - (613) - - - - - - (613)
Eliminated on disposals 8 RFAL - N - - (5,586) - - (13) (5,599)
At 315t March, 2013 RZF-Z4

ZH=+-1 19,799 - 71712 135,465 9,152 14,59 14,254 20,406 285,382
CARRYING VALUES FAE
At 315t March, 2013 RZF-Z4

ZH=+-1 83,981 29,875 474003 133,838 19,271 3,276 16,204 12415 872903
Ac 315t March, 2012 RZZ-2F

BV ES e 86,431 29,102 503,772 268,344 21,903 3,167 18294 19,181 950,194

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms

of land, ranging from 41 to 42

years

Buildings The shorter of the remaining
lease term of the land on
which the buildings are
situated of 41 years, and 49
years

Hotel complex The shorter of remaining lease

terms of land on which the

buildings are situated, ranging

from 16 to 20 years, and 25

years

Leasehold improvements ~ The shorter of the remaining
lease terms of land on which
the buildings are situated, and
5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years

Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures

Other tools

5 to 7 years
4 to 10 years

The buildings of the Group were valued as at 31st March,
2013 and 2012 by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Ltd. on an
open market value basis. Messrs. RHL Appraisal Ltd.
is not connected with the Group, and have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations.

The leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong
Kong with medium-term lease. The hotel complex includes
gaming premises situated in Macau with medium-term

lease.

B2 Z—=F=-A=+—BULEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

18. IR KRB - &

DL E W 3 RBe g TE H )55 DLR 4F SR DU
HAIEFHETE

HE i T2 BRI T4l

B4

BT MR AE L B T AR
414F > B494F (DL HE
B )

T G A A BEFE A L2 8T
A F162204F - #8254
(DA J 2 5 )

HEYREE MTHET 2 TH
WS 105 (LI B
1)

R REfE 42104
WAERM 3RS
BREEE  SEF
Hh T H 4% 104

A G B 2 AT e R AT AT R A
RAFIR ZF— =R % =
H = — B % 23 B i (5 A AT A
{E o K M AT 6 R R A R 2 ] 7 B A
4 1 37 0 > ELA 5 AR iR
AT 35 R 3t B LA ) 3 2 A (B A i

(L A 2 FH 85 b R A 5 0 AR
) o T I A5 S HEALAE L TR P TR P
LA ) TR W) 3 -
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HE-Z-—=F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

18. I RKHRE-&

i 5 B R AR EE AL o RIS I 4R
SO A YR R R KRG EE
5 £120,003,000% 76 (=& — 4 -
20,563,000% 70) 1E45 G B MK TR -

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would have
been included in these consolidated financial statements
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses of HK$20,003,000 (2012:
HK$20,563,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasehold land, building and

the hotel complex to secure banking facilities granted to the

AL O A THE L XL &
05 A5 BRI > AR 2 A B2 B 2 R
TR EBZ AR & o A BB AT 2 5E 16

Group. Details of the pledge are set out in note 44 to the

consolidated financial statements. O 57 G T R N 5144 -
19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. BEZTR
2013 2012
—EBE-=F e S S
HKS$’ 000 HK$ 000
FET T#TT
At beginning of the year R AEH] 5,851 1,536
118 Additions B 6,002 4,971
Transfer to property and equipment L/ E Y &L ] (10,973) (656)
z
Qg_, At end of the year A AE 4 880 5,851
g
3 20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REWF
g 2013 2012
Q —s-=% e St
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T# T
FAIR VALUE DRE
At beginning of the year ISR 1,562,793 1,709,499
Additions & 16,500 -
Transfer to property and equipment ER/EY & ] - (9,578)
Transfer to prepaid lease payment T2 YR A A RO - (3,043)
Net change in fair value recognised ISR SRR /N W<
in profit or loss 5 )V RE (150,800) (124,535)
Disposals H (62,893) (9,300)
Exchange alignment B 54, 7 %% - (250)
At end of the year T 4 1,365,600 1,562,793

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#Z=RERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

Analysed for reporting purpose as:

HE-_FT—=%=A=+—H LF’*
For the year ended 31st March, 201

20 REWE &

LR T E AT

2013 2012
—E-=F TR TAR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
FERT T#TT
Assets classified as held for sale DB HERE L EE - 62,893
Investment properties ia-¢/ES 1,365,600 1,499,900
1,365,600 1,562,793
The carrying value of investment properties shown above AR EZ BEY TR
are situated on:
2013 2012
—E-=F e
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T# T
Land in Hong Kong: R FHZ L -
Long lease RIHL 32,400 10,600
Medium-term lease AL A 11,200 9,400
Land outside Hong Kong: PR B WIS i
Freehold KA M - 62,893
Medium-term lease AL A 1,322,000 1,479,900
1,365,600 1,562,793

The investment property situated in Macau, amounting
to HK$1,322,000,000 (2012: HK$1,479,900,000), was
acquired through the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2010.
The fair value as at 31st March, 2013 and 2012 was valued
by Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuers not connected with the Group. Messrs.
BMI Appraisals Limited has appropriate qualification and
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to current passing rents of the property being held
under existing tenancies and the revisionary potential of
the tenancies and discounted by applicable market yields of

similar properties in Macau.

o7 A 1 P 2 #101,322,000,00095 0 (%
TUAF 1 1,479,900,000% 00) 2 &Y
SE T A A i B RS N R R R — &
EHEAN c Hh R — = R % —
F=H =1 —HZ A A fE i A 4
7 4% (B8 28 2 g8 N7 B S A (A R AT A R R
W EEAL A PR A A EATAG(E - AR
FEAL A PR A A EA A 2 s R
HA BB LY EAGELR - H
BAG(E 5 2% 2 EMBEBATHL 2
H w4 DA S A B &) 2 11 B8 T
3 H 4% 8 PR AU 3 2 8 S A
WE M o
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HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

During the current year, the Company acquired an
investment property located in Hong Kong from a private
company which is beneficially owned by a minority
shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. The consideration was HK$16,500,000. The fair
value of the investment property as at 31st March, 2013 was
HK$20,300,000 and was valued by Messers. RHL Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers not
connected with the Group. Messers. RHL Appraisal Limited
has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant location. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of

transaction prices for similar properties at similar locations.

The valuation of other investment properties situated in
Hong Kong was performed by the directors of the Company
by reference to recent market prices for similar properties at
similar locations for both 2013 and 2012.

All of the Group’s investment properties interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

The Group entered into a sales and purchase agreement
with an independent third party for disposal of an
investment property in Taiwan in March 2012. The
investment property was classified as held for sale as at
31st March, 2012. The fair value of the property as at
31st March, 2012 was estimated by the directors of the
Company with reference to the transaction price contracted,
which is New Taiwan dollars 239,000,000, equivalent to
HK$62,893,000. The Group completed the disposal during
the year.

In 2012, the Group transferred certain properties situated
in Macau from investment properties to property and
equipment and prepaid lease payment at the fair value of
HK$9,578,000 and HK$3,043,000, respectively, when the
Group commenced its own-occupation in 2012. During
the year ended 31st March, 2013, there was no transfer
of investment properties to property and equipment and

prepaid lease payment.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A

20. REME-—E

RN AN A FA A 7 (il A
Ar—HIEREMBAR 2 —2 D8
JBER T 4 ) WO — T B 2
BEWE o 18 516,500,00085 TG © 7%
HEEWER -F—=F=H="+—
H 2 /A o8 £520,300,0003 ¢ > J7 H Bl
A 4L 13 N7 4 TR 2 e S B SR A (R AT
K A AT S BB A PR 4 ® A T o iR
A7 T R A PR m) L G 2 B
T f 0t S A T b B AL 3 22 A (48
B o A B Y 2 75 M 27 Hh B 2 B
W2 22 5y B A T IR A A o

Y e Sy A A
P E S R 2 e 2
W 1 45 RS S0 0 2 A 8
RS R

A 2 A R Y SERE R ) LR
A FFA - 3 DU 5 BUE SUE AR
WMH - S BE Y MR I IA AU ME
BT SRR BB W 3 Sk it
N

AEEH _F— AFE=H -8
S =R L E B ek U B —H
B2 EWHE - T ——4F
“HA=1—H > ZHELEEWETIHH
BRERE - Y ER T — F =
A=Z=1+—H2Z A RMETIH AN #
B2 HF L2 ERE (B &%
239,000,0007T > #H & *62,893,000H#
J6) MG FE o AE B 2L 7 4F A 58 B TH

HE -

W FE - REHCEAREH
A E — B bR I A T TR Y
ZWEEETERARE A HYE
4% & W 2E 3% 43 Al 159,578,000 I K
3,043,000 JC 2 2~ fo fH £ Y 2% K
L AT E KOE o R E %
—ZHE=ZA=Z+—HILEF  WEH
1 & Wy 2 i 2 ) 2 KR DA K FEAS AR
EHIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

21

The Group has pledged certain investment properties to

secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Details

HE-_FT—=%=A=+—H *h
For the year ended 31st March, 201

20 REWE &

AL ETEREYREN L
A SR E S SRAT R R AR - A

of the pledge are set out in note 44 to the consolidated BRI 2 RIS O 4 A IS R I EE
financial statements. 44 o
. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Q1. B EE
Trading
rights in
Hong Kong Club
exchanges memberships Total
ERRXB A
ZRFHE efeE a5t
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T T T o0 T 0
COST R
At 1st April, 2011, W oFz——FMHHA—H -
31st March, 2012 CE-THF A=+ —H R
and 31st March, 2013 SE-=F=A=+—H 5,850 6,701 12,551
IMPAIRMENT A
At Ist April, 2011, WoF——FMHA—H -
31st March, 2012 TE T ZA=Z—H K
and 31st March, 2013 X —-=4F=H=+—H 3,196 400 3,596
CARRYING VALUES BREEE
At 31st March, 2013 W oF—-=F=A=+—H 2,654 6,301 8,955
At 31st March, 2012 R oE - =H=Z+—H 2,654 6,301 8,955

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to HK$1,053,000 were no longer
utilised to generate profits to the Group. For the purpose of
impairment testing on these trading rights, the recoverable
amount has been determined based on secondary market
prices and no impairment was made as at 31st March,
2013 and 2012. The recoverable amounts of other trading
rights with carrying value of HK$1,601,000 (2012:
HK$1,601,000) held by the Group have been determined
with reference to the recoverable amounts based on a value-
in-use calculation which was similar to impairment testing
on goodwill. Particulars regarding impairment testing on

the other trading rights are disclosed in note 23.

AEFHZZERARER LT A B
1,053,000% JC 2 28 7 HE 5 A e FH DA &
A A T AR U R o TE B SE 3 5 RE A
A7 B AS B BRE > AT i ] 4 R O AR R
CF W AE W E o N F— A
B = — AR =4 H O
B o 74 [ F¢ A R E 41,601,000
JC (& — T4 1 1,601,000% 00) 2 H
fih 52 5 RE W AT i I] 6 %6 - £ 2% TR
[ 5 %E > MRHR {0 AR (Ao s (B
A A AR ARL) 1 B o HAR IS S
T TR 55 S R 23 v B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BH=E

—E—=%=HA=1+—HItFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2013

21.

22,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

Intangible assets amounting to HK$6,301,000 (2012:
HK$6,301,000) represent club memberships. For the
purpose of impairment testing on club memberships,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on
the second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No
impairment loss was recognised in years 2013 and 2012
with reference to the recoverable amount of the club

memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading

rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

Q1. B EE—&

55 %6,301,0008 50 (= F — 4
6,301,000%5 JG) 2 &Y & & 5 € r &
oM e W EmImNE > K
A Ui [ 4 58 Y AR A% — T T 5 (E A W
BT E - 2% G g2 Ik
Ml a#E > N F S FER R
A I 40 R R U (E 4R o

ARFHEBRS > LR G &k
Al 458 B 4R 309 -

GOODWILL 22. 8
HKS$’ 000
T 0
COST B <
At 1st April, 2011, 31st March, 2012 AZE——FWNH—H -
and 31st March, 2013 oE - E=A=+—H
M _E—-ZF=H=1+—H 94,970
IMPAIRMENT A
At Ist April, 2011 WE——FMNH—H —
Impairment loss recognised in the year (note 23) N HERR 2 WAE RS 18 (K E23) 79,529
At 31st March, 2012 and 31st March, 2013 W E—-THFE=ZH=Z=+—HK
SR -=HE=ZA=+—H 79,529
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31st March, 2013 W oEFE—-=F=A=+—H 15,441
At 31st March, 2012 W_FE—_HF=ZH=+—H 15,441

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in note 23.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 21 and 22, respectively, have
been allocated to two CGUs, namely broking and hotel
and entertainment (see note 8 for details of segment
information). The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) and certain trading rights
as at 31st March, 2013 and 2012 allocated to the units are

as follows:

B2 Z—=F=-A=+—BULEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

23. BEREMR S E 2R ERR

a3 RO B 21 222 5 4 B E il
FAF 1A 28 B i e i 2 4 T &5 {1
BLEE A BIVAE 4040 38 LA SR i B e 4%
o3 CH B -G R 2 FEE - w2 B
FE8) o JrECL R AL v (4R B
HEETR) K& TSR —F—=
ER CFE-CEZAZ - HWER
R/ N

(a) Goodwill (a) HE
Hotel and
Broking entertainment Total
B BERRSE #at
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T AR T T
Carrying value as at B F—-—HFNA—H
Ist April, 2011 ZHRTHE 15,441 79,529 94,970
Impairment loss recognised  4F A 58 < 3 {E 5 450
in the year (note 22) (ftit22) - (79,529) (79,529)
Carrying value as at RoF-CHFEZA=F AR
31st March, 2012 CE-ZHEZA=+—H
and 31st March, 2013 Z B {H 15,441 - 15,441
(b) Trading rights (b) XS
Broking
ge
HK$’ 000
T
Carrying value as at 1st April, 2011, MREF——FWNH—H  ZF—"4F R
31st March, 2012 and 2013 SR -CZHEEZAE - HZIRWE 1,601
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS
— continued

The recoverable amounts of the broking CGU containing
goodwill and certain trading rights have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 4% (2012: 4%) and at zero (2012: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value in use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the broking CGU to
fall below the aggregate carrying amount of the broking
CGU.

During the year ended 31st March, 2012, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$79,529,000
in relation to goodwill which arose on acquisition of
subsidiaries in hotel and entertainment business. In
2012, in view of operating loss suffered by the hotel and
entertainment segment during the year as disclosed in note
8, the directors of the Company were of the opinion that
the benefit of expected synergies and revenue growth was
not as strong as expected. The recoverable amounts of the
hotel and entertainment CGU containing goodwill have
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That
calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period and at a discount rate of 4%, and at 5% growth
rate for both hotel business and entertainment business.
A key assumption for the value in use calculation was the
budgeted growth rate, which was determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. Considering the estimated recoverable
amounts, the management believed that the goodwill of the
hotel and entertainment segment should be fully impaired.
The management considers no impairment on prepaid lease
payments and property and equipment in the hotel and
entertainment segment is necessary in years 2013 and 2012,
given their fair values exceeding their carrying amounts as at
31st March, 2013 and 2012.
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5 B R T a8 oy HE 2 SR A A B
A7 2 AT W [ 4 36 CAR S8 AE B RT 8
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4%) Z BB R K E (ZF— A
T) W EFETH SRR EN - HE
ZWERLERBEENERZ FER/R
e BB RTIBI A FHEE
T i M R 2 W T o A R
JE A > AR AR A Z AT & FE T fe 2
5 S S B A B B A 2 AT
Wi [ 45 B K 4K A0 BB B 2 A RTIR
T {H °

WERE_F—-_F=ZHA=Z1T—HI
AR S B2 [ A AT TR A O i R i 4
T 2 Mg F) T E A 2 e R R
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— A 80 W B GEs T B #F o T 5
T2 N6 48 53 B AF N SR A5 s 4R A
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1E B A w20 2 o SARTEIER
BEHEER Y HFERHEA - 4%
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¥ Fsw W RBETH B EEHY -
HAZMERMAEREMEAEZ T
TR FAZWMERTIRBLEZ
B N L T 5 R 2 W T
JE o 2% JE BIAG FF AT i ] s HE o B
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F—CAEE R F - CFEZEMAM
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25.

HEe2—="F=-"A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013
24. OTHER ASSETS 24, Hith & &
Other assets represent statutory and other deposits with HoAh & mE AR AT T AR ZE 5 BT K453
various exchanges and clearing houses and are non-interest e kHAME S - ARSI R
bearing. =L E o
LOANS AND ADVANCES 25. ERR B
2013 2012
—E—-=F TR AR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T
Fixed-rate loan receivables [i5] 5 1] =R E i B K 93,678 77,322
Less: Allowances for impaired debts Bk U R T A (18) (7,137)
93,660 70,185
Secured A KA 41,915 29,162
Unsecured LI 51,745 41,023
93,660 70,185
Analysed as: i
Current i B 91,260 68,809
Non-current JE 7 B 2,400 1,376
93,660 70,185

At 31st March, 2013, certain loans and advances
with carrying amount of HK$3,162,000 (2012:
HK$29,162,000) are secured by first mortgage of
properties in Hong Kong with an aggregate fair value
of HK$9,000,000 (2012: HK$55,210,000); carrying
amount of HK$38,200,000 (2012: HK$20,000,000) are
covered by second mortgages of properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate fair value of HK$116,400,000 (2012:
HK$43,000,000); and carrying amount of HK$38,753,000
(2012: nil) are secured by shares listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange with an aggregate fair value of
HK$144,362,000 (2012: nil). The loan receivables carry
interest ranging from 10% to 24% per annum for both
years.

The Group determines the allowances for impaired debts
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts and management’s judgment, including
assessment of change of credit quality, collateral and the
past collection history of each customer. The Group has
concentration of credit risk as 91% (2012: 86%) of the total
loans and advances was due from the Group’s five largest
borrowing customers. The directors of the Company believe
that the allowances for impaired debts are sufficient.

AN B -=ZFE=HA=+—H > &ETIE
T {8 £53,162,0004% 70 (- F — T 4F ¢
29,162,000 JC) 2 B 3% M K i 480
FAH 459,000,000 9C (& — T4
55,210,000 ) 2 Hl M 3 2 5 — %
e 1E Z HE 5 35 T BE 1M {E 45 38,200,000
#E It (. F— 4F 1 20,000,0004: C) &
AR M AR AN A {E £5116,400,000
w0 (& — 4 : 43,000,000% J0)
CHEBWEZE IEAE B REE
Ko 5 BE 1 {H £438,753,000% 0 (%
— AR 2 E R AR HARES
144,362,000% 70 ( & — 4 %) 2
T U Wt 52 BT b T R AN A 5 A KA o
JRE A SR % W AR AF BE TR % A ~F 108
F4JH 2 AFF|FHGHE -

7 G2 o] AR 4% 364 i [ T 2 K M R i
Z T o DL G 2 (AR B
HHE RS Z oMl - EH AR ES
Z WCCRC Bk ) T PR E (B RS 2 A o
HY T A B AR K B P R991% (&
— AR 86%) A ME WA B2 1 R A K
B S 2 AKIE > A 4R B EHE R AR R
B 2 A8 DL o AR 2% ) 3 o M A el (L R 5
A A o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

25. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued

25. ERRBR-&

Movements in the allowance for impaired debts are as WM 2B T
follows:

2013 2012
—E—-=F TR AR
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT T# T
Balance at beginning of the year I R 7,137 14,668
Charge for the year R - 4,472
Reversal for the year 4F 1A 438 ] (34) (3)
Write-off L (7,085) (12,000
Balance at end of the year A GE iR 18 7,137

Included in the Group’s loans and advances are individually
impaired customers with an aggregate balance of
HK$180,000 (2012: HK$7,347,000). The balance is spread
over a number of borrowers. Such borrowers are facing
financial difficulties in meeting commitments and full
repayment of principal and interest is in doubt. After taking
into account collateral held for certain impaired loans and
advances which are properties situated in Hong Kong, an
impairment of HK$18,000 (2012: HK$7,137,000) was
made. No further impairment allowance was considered

necessary based on the Group’s evaluation of collectability.

As at 31st March, 2012, included in the Group’s loans
and advances are debtors with a carrying amount of
HK$7,000,000 which were past due for more than 60
days but not impaired. The directors of the Company
considered such debts as recoverable since the amounts were
subsequently settled and thus no impairment allowance was
considered necessary. There are no loans and advances past

due but not impaired as at 31st March, 2013.

The loans and advances with a carrying amount of
HK$93,498,000 (2012: HK$62,975,000) are neither past
due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period. In view
of the repayment history of these borrowers and collateral
provided, the directors of the Company consider the

amount to be recoverable and of good credit quality.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A

A A ] 28R K B B R R
2% OB S8 AS R 55180,0009 T (&
— T 4F 17,347,000 0) o A BRI
IR B Z 4N o A BN H
JEAT R T T B B B fEE R
WU R AR S XA B A7 GE o BFF oA
T B S EBGRRE A 2 (5
PR T Z Y 3) 1% - ©AF 118,000
Jo (=& — 4 1 7,137,000% 70) Z
{8 o AR A B2 [ 3 i [l 3 T B B T
il > 5 B ZEFH P — A W A o

RoFE-FZH =+ —H o AEE
Z B BG4 HE T 6o
H AH NI 48 36k (B > 177 HR T8I 457,000,000
WL EWCKTH - ANFHEFERAHE
B K TE 2 BT DA ] s BR O A BH R E
i AR R ER 2 B LR
Bl oM —E—-=F=HA=+—HI
A A5 R B GR84S 4 ek . o

AR IR > HRTE (E 45 93,498,000 7T
(& — 4 £ 62,975,000 0) Z B
T ERGER F I 3 A O S (o B %
S E KON 2 38 R0 B DL R OIT R A 2 4
5 > AN A E SRR A B EE T
DAl B R EE R -



e TSR R M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B2 Z—=F=-A=+—BULEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

26. DEPOSIT 26. B&
Amount represented deposit paid to Galaxy Casino S.A. A B RIEAC RIS IR LA WA A
(“Galaxy”) pursuant to the service contract entered between ([ 4 AR 4% J) BRLGR J0T e 48 355 I 13 5 TR
Grand Waldo Entertainment Limited (“GWE”) and Galaxy ONE TR D) 5T SE 2 IR A 4 E )
in respect of the provision of gaming related marketing and SR A 2 ¥ o BRI G AR R
business promotion services in a casino in the Group’s hotel TE A SR 09 T 555 MR 2 B 4 05 R 3
complex. The balance is unsecured, bearing interest at 1.2% 185 5% A0 B T 4 3 R S SES T R IR -
per annum (2012: 1.2%) and refundable to GWE at the A S A 28 (X
end of service contract with Galaxy in year 2022. — A 128) 2RISR > LT

i B GRAAT §T S 2 RS S M
AR IR 0] T AR R 4

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 27. B BRIE
2013 2012
—E—-=5F TR TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR T#IT
Accounts receivable arising from the W EEN P EE
business of dealing in securities: Z MEWIRIE -
— Cash clients —HEEF 22,195 32,315
— Margin clients: —REBEF
— Directors and their —HERNWEFEZ
associates 73 PNan 593 -
— Other margin clients —HAfREREF 1,426,090 1,441,504
— Hong Kong Securities Clearing —HW P REE
Company Limited AR 2 148
Accounts receivable from futures MBEEEAHET TEL
clearing house arising from the KEMBELEZ
business of dealing in futures JE SR TE
contracts 9,968 4,398
Accounts receivable from providing 2 B H A B 5 T R 5
financial advisory services Z P R I - 100
Accounts receivable from hotel and A& B T B R 4 g
entertainment operations Z BE W IR IE 13,792 9,623
1,472,640 1,488,088
Less: Impairment allowance Vv A (15,965) (15,937)
1,456,675 1,472,151
The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from JEW B4 % F #7545 55 0 2 AR IELY
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days after EEWHEARAZ S HEMH - T
trade date while accounts receivable from futures clearing W5 45 5 T 2 MR TH B0 IE R 45 50 5 22
house is one day after trade date. ZHB—H -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$710,000 (2012:
HK$379,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period but which the directors of the Company
consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which

are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting

27. EWERIE — &

BEEF 2 BUCRE T - 645 ik s
WK & s W T MR TE (. £5710,000% T0
(= F—4F 1 379,000 70) 2 ME UK
TH > AR ) 3 9550 5 A B R I
WA - A B E 2 R B R
K 58 B T A 40 R T L R AR E

i -

L R 2 0 S R 9 2 B
&P REWCIRIE N = > A B AR B0 AT (i

period, the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as HE AR WF
follows:

2013 2012
—g-—= —F U
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
0 — 30 days 0F 30K 624 368
31 — 60 days 31%60K 86 11
710 379

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of HK$21,485,000 (2012: HK$31,936,000) are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting
period and the directors of the Company are of the opinion

that the amounts are recoverable.

Loans to securities margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of HK$3,820,025,000
(2012: HK$4,019,830,000). Significant portion of the
pledged securities are listed equity securities in Hong Kong.
The loans are repayable on demand and carry interest at
Hong Kong Prime Rate + 2% to 4.25% (2012: Hong Kong
Prime Rate + 2.24% to 4.25%). Securities are assigned
with specific margin ratios for calculating their margin
values. Additional funds or collateral are required if the
outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin value of
securities deposited. The collateral held can be repledged
and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle any
outstanding amount owed by margin clients. No ageing
analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of securities margin

financing.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A

AWK > BRI (E 521,485,000 76
(& — 4 1 31,936,000% o0) 2 M
WO 4 5 2 R T B NI 48 3 3 R 4B ek
(B > AN W) 58 5 A BH ZOH 2 T LA
W ] o

BTHERBLEFFZ2ERBUEF
IR AHE R Z AR
{8 £53,820,025,000% 70 (& — 4 ¢
4,019,830,000%5 70)  F#s b i I AR 7
Z5 Ak © HE R 58 I P ) AR AL o A B
B FOE I RN K > DA U 1B
BNM2EZE 425 (ZF— T 4F  Filkx
BRI RN2.248 £4.258) 518 - 7
KR TIFEZRBESLRUFIAR
B EE - S RERAKERRCAHT
AZ RN EEKRESEME A€
FORR P RSN E & SR A o BT
FefE 2 AR & o] DL S o T A 4 3
RIS AS 2 BB LA E RSB SR P R
57 2 AT ] 5 2 BKARE - B W R R B
SRMEEGZHE  AAFEHERR
= T | 1 B N N v L I 75
TR WS AT o



27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are
margin loans with an aggregate outstanding balance of
HK$32,437,000 (2012: HK$61,273,000) which are not
fully secured. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk on these loans, with exposure spread over
a number of clients, and which are closely monitored
by the Group. The Group held collateral of listed
equity securities with a fair value of HK$17,055,000
(2012: HK$42,196,000) at the end of the reporting
period in respect of these loans. Impairment allowance
of HK$15,965,000 (2012: HK$15,937,000) has been
made for margin loans with an aggregate outstanding
balance of HK$26,567,000 (2012: HK$29,651,000). No
further impairment allowance is considered necessary for
remaining margin loans based on the Group’s evaluation of

collectability.

In determining the allowances for impaired loans to
securities margin clients, management of the Group
considers the margin shortfall by comparing the market
value of stock portfolio and the outstanding balance of loan
to securities margin clients individually. Impairments are
made for those clients with margin shortfall as at year end

and with no settlement after the year end.

Movements in the allowance for impaired debts in respect

of loans to securities margin clients are as follows:

e TSR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_FT—=%=A=+—H *h
For the year ended 31st March, 201

27. EWERTE — &

A A 1B 2 i R T A S A R 1B R A
% £932,437,000% o0 (& — 4 -
61,273,000%% 7)) Z R &% 4 B - A B
B O A8 A T HE R o AR R 1A A A
L ERERmMEEHEZEEE T
R > A B R 9 UR B £ 4 % F Il
AEMEBIELR - RER > &
£ 18 5% AF B K f?ﬁZﬁH$mﬁ/\
FAE 17,055,000 70 (& — 4
@xwm%ﬁaziﬁ&ﬁﬁ#»ﬁ
£l A oK fE R &5 B8R £526,567,0009 T
(=& —4F 1 29,651,00085 70) Z R
B AE 115,965,000 76 (& —
1 15,937,000% J0) 2 I (H 1 4 o IR
BEZ'K%@%H&E] IEEE%(Z n:Fﬁi ? F!zb
H A HGAE S ERIELE—F
WAE T A o

AL EE B RS SR
B R A o f A R R AR R
HERZBRFEAGHEERS A2 R
F 78 B0 AR 45 R A L > AR 1T 25 IR i
BN o AEEBAES A ZE
J5 R A K B R R AR & H AR R &5
i) A e

PR REEEF 2 5 BEE
B s B E

2013 2012

—F—= 5

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

F 5 Tt

Balance at beginning of the year SRR 45 15,937 12,703
Charge for the year GANE] 755 3,234
Write-off B (727) -
Balance at end of the year SRR GE R 15,965 15,937
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued 27. B BRTE — &

In addition to the individually assessed allowances for
impaired debts, the Group has also assessed, on a collective
basis, a loan impairment allowance for accounts receivable
arising from the business of dealing in securities with
margin clients that are individually insignificant or accounts
receivable where no impairment has been identified
individually. Objective evidence of collective impairment
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, internal credit rating and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables. No significant amount of collective
impairment allowance is considered necessary based on the

Group’s evaluation.

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due

from certain related parties. The details are as follows:

Balance at
Ist April,
2012

R

—E-_F

MA—H

Name HH A -
HKS$’ 000

TiT

M. Lung Hon Lui TRk
(director of the Company) (R A& ) -

B 7 1] 3t S Al SR (L 5 2 A 41
ASE R A B A IR e R P H
Ji 2 S5 e A AR F M SIS0
W BRI - LBl alf 08 A8 3 M g BT 2 B
T (L 1 B WSSHR T > L o R VEE gl i
R IFHEAT WL (E AT A o B8 801 2 % B
ok TIRGEATRE LA € /€S R
5 SERE AR - DA B B e i JE 2 2 A B
9 B 5% B b Ty A8 5 DL 2 AT B A A
B o MREEALE W 2 Al B8R B AR
HH KRR 114 R (L A A

WELGEBHELEZIREESE T MR
WRIE P LA TR AN £ R 7
BT -

Maximum  Market value

amount of pledged

Balance at outstanding securities at
31st March, during 31st March,
2013 the year 2013
BARE

jiS ERzES
—B-=f R-ZE-=fF
ZA=t-H En&Em =ZA=t-H
2% REESE ZhiE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Tt T Tk

593 5,332 8,748

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates

offered to other margin clients.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable arising from
hotel and entertainment operations are trade and other
receivables. The Group normally allows credit periods of up
to 60 days to customers relating to hotel and entertainment
operations, except for certain creditworthy customers with
long term relationship and stable repayment pattern, where

the terms are extended to a longer period.
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UL 5 B 28 5 R e B
58 6 M 046 2 R S 25 0 7 3
GESI

A AR TR 10 R R g R R
TH b 15 B oy B A R AR o AR
B — A T e g 2 R B
REGOHWHEEW  miaTARMNS
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable
from hotel and entertainment operations presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period, which

approximated the respective revenue recognition dates.

rE M B RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_FT—=%=A=+—H LF’*
For the year ended 31st March, 201

27. EWERIE — &

U G D 16 4 7 2 R WOIR T AR 95
o R 2 8% 5% Y (BEUAR ) Wi 45 e
H A 250 HRES 0 Btk

2013 2012
—E—= TR AR

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

TR T

0 — 30 days 0£30K 10,624 7,873
31 — 60 days 31% 60K 2,394 1,617
61 — 90 days 61290K 141 133
Over 90 days 90K 633 -
13,792 9,623

Before accepting any new customer, the directors of the
Company access the potential customers’ credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to

customers are subject to a yearly Oor more ﬁ‘equent review.

The accounts receivable from hotel and entertainment
operations with a carrying amount of HK$13,018,000
(2012: HK$9,490,000) are neither past due nor impaired
and with a carrying amount of HK$774,000 (2012:
HK$133,000) are past due over 30 days but not impaired
at the end of the reporting period. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the amounts are
recoverable based on historical experience and on-going

monitoring of the customers’ credit quality.

T B AT AT B % R AR FE T
fEERF 2 ERERATHETEF 2
R S IRAH - % 5 P 2 IRAEZH 5 32 4F
JEE B S S A A o

A B R TR 3 5 B IR s
Wi B TE b s JR AT (E /4%13,018,000%5 JT
(& — 4 19,490,000 70) 2 ME UL
M 1A %Iﬂtﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ 11 M 18 (B
F4774,000% 76 (% — T4 133,000
Wot) 2 ME IR IE 2 38 19930 H {H I 4%
WME - AN FERRLS > RIS K&
HEFEEER ZFHETN - ARK
A F o] LA [m) o
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HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Movement in the allowance for impaired debts in respect
of accounts receivable from hotel and entertainment

operations is as follows:

27. B BRTE — &
A BB 1 T R 4 % 9 2 JRE i W T
Z WS S T

2013 2012

—E—=F TE AR

HKS$’ 000 HK$000

FHET T

Balance at beginning of the year EWIHE R - 4,293
Write-off s - (4,293)
Balance at end of the year SEACES R - -

28. INVENTORIES

2013 2012

—EBE—-=F e S

HKS$’ 000 HK$ 000

FHET T

Finished goods BR G 1,736 1,683
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

29. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 29. BHERKRE
2013 2012
—E—=F TE TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T T
Held for trading: FrEHEH -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong A% i I 11 2 JIRA 76 75 3,698 28,087
Designated as at FVTPL: BRI E (/NG W =N A = B [ 7
Convertible notes (note a) a] $ I BE 48 (M ita) 19,487 9,184
Unlisted investment fund (note b) F LR EES (M ib) 13,950 15,532
Debt securities (note c) BH 5 (M atc) 16,613 14,134
50,050 38,850
53,748 66,937
Analysed as Vgl
Current T B 31,978 28,087
Non-current FE I B 21,770 38,850
53,748 66,937
notes: Wﬁ%f :

(a)

The Group held convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$14,801,000 as at 31st March, 2013 (2012:
HK$10,001,000) which were issued by Hong Kong listed
companies and bear fixed interest of 3% to 8% (2012: 8%)
per annum and will be due in 2013 to 2015 (2012: due in
2013) (subject to carly redemption). The fair value of the
convertible notes amounted to HK$19,487,000 as at 31st
March, 2013 (2012: HK$9,184,000).

The Group is entitled to convert the whole or any part(s) of
the principal amount into ordinary shares of relevant issuers
at a price with reference to the terms and conditions of the

convertible notes.

The fair values of the convertible notes as at year ended
31st March, 2013 and 2012 were estimated by Messrs. RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional

valuers not connected with the Group.

(a)

NG SN S C it o ol TR/ - & ]
WNoE—ZAEZA=Zt—HZAS
B 514,801,000 00 (& — 4
10,001,000 70) 2 nf #2295 - A B
A 4 B EE PR e A R R3S (&
— TUAF ) FHENE R — A
BEOR-AERM(CFE - R
TR SARR) (AT TR AT ) o
W A5 AT R I AR S F — A= H
=1 —HZ 2 RME 519,487,000% 70
(ZF— 4 19,184,000 70) ©

AR [ W] 4 255 W] RR AR 2 R
A TR AT AR AEA o A AT R B R 2
P AT AT I 4 A < R 40 7y A ) %
TN R -

R e e S
FZH = B 20 AT i B 5
S B 2 8 57 93 7 A R
7 L P R4 it o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

29. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

— continued

notes: — continued

(b)

(©

The principal investment objective of the fund is to achieve
capital appreciation through medium/long term equities
investment in selected Asian region/countries. The fair value
of the investment fund is established by reference to the net
asset value per share quoted by respective fund administrator,
which is determined after taking into account the assets held
by the fund, which reflects the Group’s share of the net asset
value of the fund. The shares held in the fund are redeemable
at net asset value per share. The major assets of the fund as
at 31st March, 2013 and 2012 are securities listed in Hong
Kong and bank balance.

The Group held a secured note with principal amount of
US$2,000,000 which was issued by an unlisted company,
bears fixed interest of 15% per annum from and including
21st April, 2012 until and including the final maturity
date. The secured note will mature in 2013 (subject to early
redemption). The note was secured by a pledge over listed
securities held by the issuer. Management classified this
secured note as designated as at FVTPL since this investment

contains embedded derivative.

The fair value of the note as at year ended 31st March,
2013 was estimated by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers not connected with

the Group.
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30.

31.

32.

DERIVATIVES

The Group held a warrant together with the secured note
mentioned in note 29(c). The Group may, but is not
obliged to, in lieu of making payment in cash for exercising
the warrant, use the principal amount of the secured note
for settlement on exercising the warrant. The warrant was
purchased at a consideration of HK$1,773,000, which
the Group could exercise the right to purchase from the
issuer for securities of a listed company at a pre-determined
exercise price. The warrant, which can be early cancelled
by the issuer at a specified amount, will expire on 20
October, 2013. The fair value of warrant as at year ended
31st March, 2012 was HK$1,710,000. During the year,
the warrants were redeemed by the issuer at US$150,000
(HK$1,164,000). The fair value loss of HK$546,000 was
recorded in fair value change on financial assets held for
trading included in other gains and losses as disclosed in

note 9(b).

The fair value of the derivatives as at year ended 31st
March, 2012 was estimated by Messrs. RHL Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional values not

connected with the Group.

BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions during the course of conducting
its regulated activities in its ordinary course of business.
Such clients’ monies are maintained in one or more
segregated bank accounts. The Group has recognised the
corresponding accounts payable to respective clients and

other institutions.

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging from 0%
to 0.7% (2012: 0% to 1.5%) per annum with an original

maturity of three months or less.

30.

31.

32.

BHE—_EZ—=%F=A=+—H %h
For the year ended 31st March, 201
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

33. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

33. E{TBRIE

2013 2012
—E—=F TE AR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T
Accounts payable arising from the 7 S R A
business of dealing in securities: ZMEATARIA
— Cash clients - 110,514 71,105
— Margin clients —REBEF 113,841 116,963
— Clearing houses — KA BT 50,278 43,525
Accounts payable to clients arising MEALHEEEH T
from the business of dealing in A AR S
futures contracts HETE 18,112 11,078
Accounts payable arising from hotel T 5 B 15 4 v 3 e
and entertainment operations Z FEAT IR IE 6,997 11,975
299,742 254,646

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
clients and securities clearing houses are two days after trade

date. The ageing of these balances is within 30 days.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand and carry interest at 0.25% (2012: 0.25%) per
annum. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion
of directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

Included in accounts payable to margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts
due to directors of the Company and their associates of
HK$3,070,000 (2012: HK$1,072,000).

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits received
from clients for their trading of futures contracts on the
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”). The
excesses of the outstanding amounts over the required initial
margin deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to
clients on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the
opinion of directors of the Company, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of

business of futures contract dealing.
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JER IR & KT MiE A aEB I 2 IRTEK
EEEAY AL HBEMH o %545
2 BEH B30 K LA o

R 8 I3 R 7 4 % P JE 2R B SR IR
A0 H 3520258 (& — 4F 1 0.25/H)
ZAER R o R R R SR
W2 MR AN ] R A IR
Bz S B AME A o R SN A B R R
3T e

EEEEERELEZ MM RESEF
WRIE v > 6035 ME A AR A F) 35 3 M55
Z TN 1 EKIE 3,070,000 00 (&
— 4 1 1,072,000%5 T) ©

MEBEaHHREEGETELEZBNER
MRIE > J2 4 1) % 5 WS LU AE 7 I B
oy A R R (T2 BT )) B &
B Z PR B o B ST P L E
Jir 5 2 0020 PR 4 4 4 2 1 R AR IR K
o HREF BRI AR - R R
BRHEEF M ARFEER
T MR B o A SIS RE A > PR Sl
19 5% BR W AT



e TSR R M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHEzE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—BHIt&E
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

33. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - continued

The average credit period granted by the suppliers or service

33. E{JERIE - &
I e i 4 1 i RS AL E
AL 2 P (5 A B G0K o VB H
J5 5 0 R T B TEL AR 95 4 0 K
235 R RS A BT -

providers of hotel and entertainment operations is 60 days.
The following is an ageing analysis of accounts payable
arising from hotel and entertainment operations, presented

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

34.

2013 2012
—E-=fF TR TR

HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

FERT T#TT

0 — 30 days 0%30K 3,270 8,477
31 — 60 days 31260k 3,261 3,060
61 - 90 days 61E 90K 12 76
Over 90 days 90K 454 362
6,997 11,975

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

34. FEBRBRIKR " RFER

IR BRI

A T TR AR S S R R R

(1%)
=J
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35. BANK BORROWINGS 35. RITEE
2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT THTT
Secured and variable-rate borrowings A A B AT A R AR 332,467 501,727
Within one year — 4K 169,627 169,225
More than one year, but not A8 — A H AN 2 T AR
exceeding two years 162,840 173,160
More than two years but not TR A T A E AN O AR
more than five years - 159,342
332,467 501,727
Less: Amount due within one year W FMERE AR —F R
shown under current liabilities FI| 1A 2 RE 169,627 169,225
Amounts shown under non-current BIAEFE TR B B 2 3R
liabilities 162,840 332,502
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

35. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

36.

—
(7L ]
(=]

M €107 Hodey [enuuy

The effective interest rate (which is also equal to contracted
interest rate) of the Group’s borrowings as at 31st March,
2013 is HIBOR + 2% (2012: HIBOR + 2%).

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group obrtained banking facilities
totalling HK$1,865,350,000 (2012: HK$1,866,350,000).
These banking facilities are secured by charges over client’s
pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Details of
the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31st March, 2013, the Group had undrawn amounts
under these banking facilities of HK$1,532,883,000 (2012:
HK$1,364,623,000).

DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior year:

35. 8RITEE— &
AEEZEER T - ZHE=A
S — H 2 AR (IR T £ )
2R 7 W SR AT IR 4R B o (%
— AR 7 SRAT R R )

MoE—ZFZHA=Z+—H  £4EH
s A 3£1,865,350,00045 70 (—F—
4 1 1,866,350,000% 70) Z R AT (5 &
B HERTGEEHEEUEFZCLE
HESEAERETWEZ ML > U
K AN FEE 2 A A ERE B -
AEFCEMZ EEFIHRCNEGGR
W R M a4 5F -

MREE—-="FZA=+—H  £4EH
TE I %5 SR AT 15 B A P Y oK 2 U
#£51,532,883,0000 70 (& — 4 ¢
1,364,623,000% JC)

i FE B8
BAF BRI B B DR 2 E
B A BLIA AN (EEE ) DA B BL A )

36.

Collective
impairment
Accelerated  Revaluation on loans
tax of and
depreciation  properties advances Total
ERRER
MERBHE EGUE ZK8BHE &t
HK$ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$’ 000
T Tk Tk T
At 1st April, 2011 BEZF——HNA—H (197) 186,085 (1) 185,887
Charge (credit) to profit B GEA) REEEHE G
or loss for the year 47 (23,867) (4) (23,824)
Charge to other comprehensive 411 4~ 4F J& HoAty 21k 45
income for the year - 539 - 539
At 31st March, 2012 Ro-F—-"H=ZA=+—H (150) 162,757 (5 162,602
Charge (credit) to profit R (FA) A4 B 42
or loss for the year 225 (25,603) - (25,378)
Charge to other comprehensive 11k 7% 47 B 1At 4 [ Ui 4
income for the year - 229 - 229
At 31st March, 2013 e s e H = L [ 75 137,383 ) 137,453
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36. DEFERRED TAX - continued

37.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
estimated unutilised tax losses of HK$169,658,000
(2012: HK$239,270,000) available to offset against future
profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to
uncertainty of future profit streams. During the year,
unutilised tax losses of HK$104,767,000 expired. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$4,629,000,
HK$78,844,000 and HK$29,402,000 that will expire in
2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. Other losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax liabilities

(assets) for financial reporting purposes:

BHEzE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—BHIt&E
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

36. EERIE — &

AR R > A4 B H 169,658,000
J6 (K — 4 £ 239,270,000% 70) 2
i 5F A B B JE 5 48 BT DA K 8 R
At A o H A TR BE 1 % A Y 2 R R
U8 > R SR BLIR S 18 - RN >
104,767,000%% 7 2 7 B Fl B TH 5 18 O
K J W o oA e FR B TE i 48 R AL S 43 T
M AR R — AR
F— 75 A i T 2 5 184,629,000 T -
78,844,000% JC }29,402,000%5 JC o H:
b e 15 AT 0 IR A 4 o o

EAERIEEME (CEE) BRSNS
SRR

2013 2012
—EgE—=5F TE— AR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT Tt
Deferred tax assets I SIE A JH A (558) (716)
Deferred tax liabilities R JE B JE B 138,011 163,318
137,453 162,602
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 37.RANRE -RERHEMEWR
RECEIVABLES MIE
2013 2012
—E-=5F TR — TR
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Prepayments A FRIH 1,297 1,187
Other deposits HoAth % 4 5,185 5,737
Receivable from gaming promoters JRE A 1R v A ROE
(note) (Hf7F) - 50,000
Other receivables A 7 i R E 3,171 11,326
9,653 68,250

Note: The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and settled

during the year.

MERE - A B A A G BN O 4R
&G
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& Z=

BE_ZT—=F="A=1+T—HILLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. JB 7%
Number
of shares
oA
>000 HK$’ 000
T T 0
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each - 50 A B T (0. 1095 T
Authorised: IE
At 1st April, 2011, 31st March, R ——FENH—H -
2012 and 2013 R -CERZE -
=H=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BT AL
At 1st April, 2011, 31st March o E O —H
2012 and 2013 SRR CE -
“A=+—H 4,473,476 447,348

On 8th June, 2012, the Company and Shin Kong Capital
Management Inc., (“Shin Kong CM”) have agreed to

terminate the option agreement pursuant to which the

Company conditionally granted 224,000,000 non-

transferrable call options to Shin Kong CM. The options
were granted to Shin Kong CM on 23rd February, 2011
but had not been exercised up to 8th June, 2012, the

termination date of the option agreement.

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

39.

(a) The share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 16th May, 2002 has expired on 5th June, 2012.

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme

(“Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed on
24th August, 2012. The major terms of the Option

Scheme are summarised as follows:

(i)

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive for eligible participant to work with
commitment towards enhancing the value of the
Company and the shares for the benefit of the
shareholders of the Company and to retain and
attract persons whose contribution are or may be
beneficial to the growth and development of the
Group.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#Z=RERA A
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BHEzE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—BHIt&E
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(a) — continued

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

The eligible participants of the Option Scheme
include: (a) any executive director, or employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or
any entity in which the Group holding an equity
interest (“Invested Entity”); (b) any non-executive
director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and (c) any such other persons (including but not
limited to supplier, customer, consultant, adviser,
contractor, business partner or service provider
of the Group or any Invested Entity) who in the
absolute discretion of the board of directors has

contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of
the issued share capital of the Company from

time to time.

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the

Company in issue.

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each
participant in any twelve-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the

Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for
the holding of a share option before it can be

exercised.

39. BIRESTE-&

(@ —#

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

WA RERE 8 2 B2 B
BLAE ¢ (a) A 4R B B A 4R T A
AHBRARES TR (T2
BEHEME]) MU EE
o B A i 4 T e R )
()AL R EZ I EHE
AT FE AT 3 (LG L IR
PTESR) s MoEHFRGLHE
AT ERE 5 B RS EUI &
AR AR AR R 2 AT AT
N CELAE (ELAS BR A A 42 [
BB X BUE R A
HE M HEEM -
LT~ SEHE KT e s 1A e
)

PR AT ol A 4% I ) e A
K5 8] 2 AT 0] L Al B8 I T B
BT A% R i RAT A 2 T A
JECHE T AT BEZH T 84T 2 A
HH ERAFABEAARA
F] AN RF B B AT AR AT AT A
B 78 25 0 230% ©

PR AT 8 AR 42 S B it o) S AR
2 ) 22 A A S A )
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(@)

— continued

(vii) A share option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined by the directors,
the period may commence on a day after the
date upon which the offer for the grant of share
options is made but shall not be later than ten

years from the date of grant of the share option.

(viii) The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 5 business days from the

date of the offer of grant of the share option.

(ix) The exercise price of a share option must be the

higher of:

the closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations on the date of the offer of
the grang;

the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer
of the grant; and

the nominal value of the share of the

Company.

(x)  The Option Scheme will expire on 23rd August,

2022.

There was no share option granted to eligible

participants during the years ended 31st March, 2013

and 2012.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A

39. R R & - &

(a)

—#

(vii) JJBCHE Tt 5 & i 2 2
1 A0 B BR AT 08 > % 300 T 2
R THREEERA N
BHMREF > BB ERER
IR 104F 1A i T~

(viii) 2 B 2 0 45 Ak Js P > U 2K
T Bt T 0 s M R
A FES R B 3E H R A
fE -

(ix) W IBCHE 2 AT fEAE 20 /3 F 91 =
EhZEmEE

a. RHEBETHEBRERRD
WA 7E W AC BT 2 B H A
PR Z A AR A U
HifE s

b, BRI T R
i H WA HE 22 5 H AR
Wt 38 BT 2 4 H ¥ A 2%
T~ Z AN A B T 34 i
i s &

c. AN EIBAOEE -
(x) R S 50 A — AR
ANHZ+=H M -
WEE - F—ZER T

A=t BIRFEEL RN S E
1% 22 B 5 ) RO



39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) On 10th August, 2010, the Company had granted

115,800,000 share options to certain employees and
services providers relating to its then jointly controlled
entities, Great China and GWE. The purpose of
granting the options is to provide incentive and reward
to those employees and services providers making
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interest of and develop the businesses of Great China
and GWE.

The terms of share options granted to employees are as

follows:

a. 24,300,000 options are exercisable within the
next 12 months from 9th February, 2011 which is
the end of the vesting period for the first batch of

options;

b. 24,300,000 options are exercisable within the
next 12 months from 9th February, 2012; which
is the end of the vesting period for the second

batch of options;

c. 25,300,000 options are exercisable within the
next 12 months from 9th February, 2013; which
is the end of the vesting period for the third batch

of options;

d.  The right of the options would automatically
expire (i) when the employee ceases employment
with Great China and GWE or (ii) three years
after 9th February, 2011, whichever is the earlier.

Remaining 41,900,000 share options were granted to
services providers in year ended 31st March, 2011.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date of grant of share options was HK$0.50

per share.

rE M B RRME
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B2 Z—=F=-A=+—BULEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

39. BIRRET 8- &
(b) RoFE—TEAFH > AL

T B IR 2 3 (] 8 o B K
e 7 4 R IR S B 2 TR B
i 5 {3k 1 7 4% HH115,800,00017 B
JRHE o F2 M T IR RE 2 B A B &
3% Jh 3 A A o K e T T B D e 4
EW M LB RA B ER A
PR 3 o 48 A 0E B 2 % 5 R
B % IRBS 4t I P

1] f B 1% ) 2 i RO RE 2 e

a. 24,300,000/ I B HE AT i %
——4E T HIJUH (F HEWE R RE
2 BB WA A ) AR
A AR A AT

b. 24,300,000 i B HE A] it —F
— AR HJUBE (G R
E 2 B g A 45 R H ) R TR
KA A B A AT

c. 25,300,000 8 B HE AT A — %
—ZAE T HILH (R =R
HE 2 i Jog BA 45 R H 1) B EHRY
KA A A8 A NATHE

d. DLEFEEEHERE R DA RS I (DA
W RLEE AR L YE) H OB E W
O - AN E:
K G R g 5 i) —F——
FETHANHEFE=ZF o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) — continued

The directors of the Company considered that the
fair value of the services received cannot be estimated
reliably. The Group measured the value of the services
and the corresponding increase in equity by reference

to the fair value of the options granted.

The estimated fair value of the 115,800,000 options
granted was HK$11,773,000. The Group amortised
the expenses over the vesting periods and recognised
amounts of HK$472,000 (2012: HK$2,444,000) as
staff costs during the year. No expense was recognised
after year 2011 for share option granted to services

providers.

The following table discloses movement of the
Company’s share options held by employees and

services providers during the year:

39. R R & - &

(b)

—#

AN TR R R A SE R
FT WS B 2 MRS 1 s el - AR 4L
27 T % 1 0 P HE 2 8 SU (B T T
A B RS 2 EAE L R 25 09 A
JE K T -

T #5242 115,800,000/ i 1% 4 2
i 512 SR {H 511,773,000 JC ©
A 45 B 7 B o B v 6 BE S > I
A A AT i 1 58472,000 00 (&
— AF 1 2,444,000% 00) £y B T
AR o JA T — — AR AR I A R
B ) A A5 L R 7 A B TR
B 3 o

R PEER R B B s R A
Z A ) B JBERE R AR A A SR )

Number of share option
FREHA

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding

asat  Granted  Forfeited asat  Granted  Forfeited asat

st April, during during 315t March, during during 315t March,

2011 theyear  theyear 2012 theyear  theyear 2013

i i i

“E--% “5-Cf “5-Zf

mA-H ZB=1-H ZA=t-H

Option grant date ERERLAN HATE  ERRE  FARK  HATE  FARM  FARM  HAGE
Employees and services providers B R R I LLIERT

10th August, 2010 SESFEAAER O 115,800,000 - (4000,000) 111,800,000 - (45.900,000) 65,900,000
Exercisable at the end LR T AT

of the year 05,900,000

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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40. WARRANTS

41.

On 31st August, 2010 and 3rd September, 2010, the
Company entered into a warrant subscription agreement
and a supplementary agreement with Honeylink Agents
Limited (“Honeylink”, a substantial shareholder of, and
which has significant influence over the Company) pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to issue 840,000,000
warrants to Honeylink, at consideration of HK$8,400,000,
to subscribe for up to 840,000,000 shares at the exercise
price HK$0.50 per warrant share. The warrant subscription
agreement was approved by the independent sharcholders
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 15th October,
2010. Honeylink is not allowed to sell or transfer interests
in the warrant shares within 6 years from the date on which
the warrant shares are issued. No warrants were exercised by
Honeylink during the year ended 31st March, 2012 and up
to 8th November, 2012, the expiration date of the warrants.

As at the grant date, the fair value of the Honeylink
warrants was HK$17,018,000. The total consideration
received by the Company was HK$8,400,000 and the
remaining amount of HK$8,618,000 was recognised as

other expenses in profit or loss in the year 2011.

The fair value of warrant at the date of grant was calculated

using the Binomial Option Pricing model.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting HK$448,000 (2012:
HK$552,000), are charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as incurred.

=F=A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

S Es—

40. BB REF

41.

RE-F-FFEANA=Z+—HEZF
—ZAEJLH =ZH > A v BElHoneylink
Agents Limited ([ Honeylink | » H /5 4
A 2 R AN F A R
BE7) WY AL R B HE % R N R M TS
fihwk - PR UL > A A [ & 7 Honeylink
#%17840,000,00017 78 i HE &5 > ACAH /5
8,400,000% JT © 7% % 5 JBC HE w5 AT % 4
i w8 B HE R IR 20,5095 JT 2 47 il AR
i i £ 840,000,000/ % 173 © 58 1B HE 7%
RiEHHERC R —F -+ A A
SRAT 2 B R T R g R ST I AL
HE o TR BEAT AR BCRE RE IR 0y H AR N
AE 1N > Honeylink AN 15 8 5l i 58 H it
R JBOHE 3 A 2 HE 4 o Honeylink i #
BEoE-HEZA=ZTHIEFER
HEZZR - —ANH (IR
a2 JE R H ) R M AT 6 AR A R o

A% 1 H B> Honeylinks® I #E 78 2
N FefE £517,018,000% I » A A ] B
W B 2 #4018 /48,400,000 G > H R
8,618,000%s G OV A & — —4FJETE 4R
g TPRRE R AL BH S -

A FHE R A B 2 A SR E T L
AR EB AR S -

ERBERGTE

A A [ AR 5 o R 4 R 3 Ak
Z R KRG B F WA G &% IR B
il 5 AR AR AT E (M5 RE S5t ) -
58 BR 4 w B 2 R — g ST R
S ITREA o A S [ OO 4 S ARk E it
PHE - A ERIEBDSHABBEA
B 25988 3K o £ $448,000% 0 (&
— AF 1 552,000 00) 2 HEEKE R AR A
A TH UL £5 RABR o
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HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 41. BRIRBAIH 8 - &

— continued

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau are Z SN UIRE Ny PSR = W R i
members of government-managed retirement benefits JIF 8 1) BOR 45 3R R A8 R st 31 A9 B
schemes operated by the Macau government. The Group B oo ASE H ZE T A R R
is required to contribute a monthly fixed contribution to AR A 51 B4 3R AR AR R AR A o A
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The A 5 A A B R AR AR R o — B AT
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement 2 MR 4 T BB E A TR R - RN
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions E 2 3K 669,000 70 (—F —
under the schemes. The contributions made during the year 1 652,000470) o

amounted to HK$669,000 (2012: HK$652,000).

42. LEASE COMMITMENTS 42. AR
The Group as lessee AEBRABEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had T BAR A 4R T R T R 2
commitments for future minimum lease payments under UNEL/EF TSR ORI S S H TN
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises HZ 2 H T -

which fall due as follows:

2013 2012

—E-=F TR TR

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

FER T# T

Within one year —4E R 51 215
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by K TR A A AR 3 A A Rk L T
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are N ERENST 2 A o FLA LT —
negotiated for an average term of one year and rentals are 2 ARG > A AR T Y AR —

fixed for an average of one year. RS o

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A



e TSR R M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B2 Z—=F=-A=+—BULEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

42. LEASE COMMITMENTS - continued 42. A EE-&|
The Group as lessor REEAEEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RS BIOR DA 2 A 4R B AR S B
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum R 2B R AR R AR A B ROH

lease payments:

2013 2012
—_E-= TR TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FRET T
Within one year —F N 404 4,243
In the second to fifth year inclusive FFERBLAER
(BEH M) - 3,316
404 7,559
Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years and TH &) A48 =48 2 T AR 2 - A &
rentals are fixed for an average of three years. IRT- B MR = A5 o
43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. EREIE 147
2013 2012 >
—_E—= - - §
HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 -
Fa% it g
3
Capital expenditure in respect of the T —IHY >
renovation of a property A B 3 379 - ﬁ
Capital contribution commitment Ji A7 — ] 3 [a] 42 i) B -
to set up a jointly controlled (1 BRI (A
entity (note) - 200,000
379 200,000
Note: The Company and Shin Kong CM entered into MfFE - AR R BRI A IR S A AR I
a cooperation agreement in relation to formation ko TRV R S — ) 3 ) 42 o R
of a jointly controlled entity to develop hotel and %%U?&%E@ F'Eﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬂfﬁk%%% o
entertainment business in Macau. The cooperation Zzﬁﬁj}ﬁ&aﬁ;— FAEAANE

agreement had been terminated on 8th June, 2012.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###ZRER Q7
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

44, BEEEHR

UTHRAMEEECKEMN  EAA
4 B HE I SRAT (5 B 2 IR

2013 2012
—E—=fF B
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT T# T

Hong Kong 7w
Leasehold land 0+ #h 83,981 86,431
Building S 28,733 27,984
Investment properties wEYE 11,200 9,400
123,914 123,815

Macau LA
Prepaid lease payments FAATAH B H 603,635 642,245
Hotel complex 0 15 % 5 1 474,023 503,772
Investment properties BEWE 1,322,000 1,479,900
2,399,658 2,625,917
2,523,572 2,749,732

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also

secured by charges over clients’ pledged securities
of HK$460,545,000 at 31st March, 2013 (2012:
HK$420,354,000) and corporate guarantees issued by the

Company.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised
banking facilities totalling HK$1,532,883,000 (2012:
HK$1,364,623,000) available as disclosed in note 35.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A

o> R FE = =ZH =+ —H
AEBZBTEEHEITIEEFZCHE
P35 75 460,545,000% 70 (—F— 4
420,354,000%5 70) LA AR FIEE A9 A
A ORI HE A -

AN B RE3S T B BE o N R R - AR
AL o] B R 2 AT R B
3 51,532,883,000% 7 (. F — 4 ¢
1,364,623,000% JC) °
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B2 Z—=F=-A=+—BULEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. AEANEIXRS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed 454 BB S 2 HoA SR pr 3k % 2 A¢

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the 5 R G AN > REFE PN ERETLLR

Group had the following related party transactions during RN '

the year:

Name of related party Nature of transaction 2013 2012

BMEATHE B8 REME —F—= “E T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

THERT T #5 7T
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Commission income (note i) 218 183

Shum Kin Wai, Frankie,
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony,
Hung Sui Kwan,
Cheng Wai Ho, Lung Hon Lui,
Ho Kwok Kwan and their
associates
LB SR~ AR R RS (B 7Ei)
s A - Wb e A
WMk ek - REE T Sk
o] B £ 56 4= DA R i 5%
b} YNSR
Messrs. Lung Hon Lui, Interest income (note ii) 89 1,163
Ho Kwok Kwan, Hung Hon Man
and their associates
HE 9/ ek - (TR ek B WA (M Ftii)
S BNV E PR E PN

Substantial shareholder FERR
Honeylink Commission income (note i) 12 311
AU A (B i)

notes: Wt

(i) Commission was charged at rates ranging from 0.1% to G) 49348 5 B 20.1%50.15% (—
0.15% (2012: 0.125%) on the total value of transactions. F— TAE 1 0.125%) W o

(ii) Interest was charged at fixed rates ranging from 7.2360% i) FBIH7.2360%59.2520% 2 [ 5
to 9.2520% (2012: Hong Kong Prime Rate + 4%) on the (TR AR T R 1 B 2 4
outstanding balance of margin loans. JE) T2 4 B 2 R A S BRI
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HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
— continued
The related party transactions as disclosed above were
exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements as
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

45. BEALIRE &

bSO PR 2 BN A58 ) M T
TR B 14ATETE N A R R AR B A 52
VP QWNVE DS &R P

JE °

EEEREZFHM

T N H A A B B R AR TR 22
LU

2013 2012

—E—-=fF B

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

TR T

Short-term employee benefits 519 4 B A8 5,327 5,940
Post-employment benefits il i 1% A8 A 129 123
Share-based payment DA A7 27 BBl % 115 595
5,571 6,658

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management is determined by the performance of

individuals and market trends.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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For the year ended 31st March, 201

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46. XD T 2 Bt RN &

OF THE COMPANY

2013 2012
—E—=5F - S
NOTE HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FEx AR P
Assets BE
Non-current assets IE i B A
Unlisted investments in WHE AR 2
subsidiaries (note) JELTHHE (B 5E) 459,253 440,839
Amounts due from subsidiaries Rt J&g 2w R 3k 441,173 -
900,426 440,839
Current assets TE
Tax recoverable AT i e B I - 249
Deposits and prepayments 2 4 e B FROH 95 114
Amounts due from subsidiaries Rff &g 2 7 R 3Kk 2,215,833 2,709,541
Bank and cash HATHE R LBl 189 60
2,216,117 2,709,964
Current Liabilities E B
Accrued expenses JRE 51 B (832) (1,218)
Tax payable JE BB T 99)
Amounts due to subsidiaries IR B 2 ) A (158,143) (137,156)
(159,074) (138,374)
Net current assets T 2,057,043 2,571,590
Net assets EEFE 2,957,469 3,012,429
Capital and reserves A K et A
Share capital JBeA 38 447,348 447,348
Reserves et #5 2,510,121 2,565,081
Total capital and reserves A T A s AR 2,957,469 3,012,429
Note: Included in unlisted investments in subsidiaries is capital W W B A A 3'5 J: fﬁ 15 4
contribution amounting to HK$18,414,000 (2012: nil). 18,414,000 ¢ ( —AE  E)

The capital contribution represents the imputed interest on

interest-free amounts due from subsidiaries which are not

expected to be recovered within 12 months from the end

of the reporting period.

paith - &%ﬁﬁ%ﬁa%z&fﬂ%/\?
JRER (B 8 0 i 01K w12
5 F i 1al) 2 eS8 o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46. AR T 2B BMR RN K —E
OF THE COMPANY - continued

Movement in reserves S )

Share
Share Share Special option  Retained
capitall  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
Bx ROEER HAURE BRERE REEN L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$ 000
T#x  TEx  T#x  T#Ex  FTEx  TEx

Balance at 1st April, 2011 REF——HNA—HZEH 47348 2280969 194,549 715 (14177) 2,936,404
Profit for the year AR A - - - - 163,051 163,051
Release upon expiry of shares RRER 2 Bkt
options granted T 1 - - - (547) 547 -
Dividend Paid EARRE - - - - (89470)  (89,470)
Recognition of share based TR A 2 3t
payment expenses - - - 2,444 - 2,444
Balance at 31st March, 2012 WoF-"H=H=1+—H
ZH 447,348 2,280,969 194,549 29,612 59,951 3,012,429
Profit for the year ARG B i A - - - - 34,038 34,038
Release upon expiry of shares EAR 2 B HE R
options and warrants granted T i O o - - - (23,381) 23,381 -
Dividend Paid etk e - - - - (894700 (89,470)
Recognition of share based TR AR ST 2 S it
payment expenses - - - 472 - 472
Balance at 31st March, 2013 R_F—-ZF=ZA=+—H
Va7 447,348 2,280,969 194,549 6,703 27,900 2,957,469

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Place of Class of
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held
fik
KEAEER AMAILE  ROEN
Get Nice Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary
Islands
fRELlE LAk
Get Nice Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
(“GNS”) Non-voting
deferred shares
(note 1)
SRR ARAT Ei Hm
(TEifF %)) AR
Eith
it/
Get Nice Futures Company Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited
GHEMEARA Fi Hk
Get Nice Capital Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
BHREARAA Bi gL
Get Nice Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited
GHREERARAR B Hl
Quality Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
TRARAH Bi Hak
Get Nice Finance Company Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited
GEMBEARA &b Hk
Allex International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
BXARARA Fik gL

Issued and
fully paid

share capital

BRIRARRA

US$10,000
10,0005 ¢
HK$360,000,000

HK$40,000,000

360,000,000 1T
40,000,000i ¢

HK$20,000,000
20,000,000/ 0

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 1.

HK$2,000,000
2,000,001 ¢

HK$9,000
9,000 1C

HK$2
2k

HK$10,000
10,0003 ¢

= Z=

M+f§*:L:ﬂ:+*Ul4g
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

47. B QAR H1E

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group Principal activities
ARERELRAR
ARl IRRE
2013 2012
Z8-zF e St 2
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest  interest
ERER MRER ARid MiEd
% % % %
At BAW BEAR AMH
100 - 100 - Tnvestment holding
RELR
- 100 - 100 Securities dealing and
broking and securities
margin financing
153
wnREREAER R
ERRLRE :
g_)
P
3
9
- 100 - 100 Futures and options 5
. w
broking s
WE kLY e
- 100 - 100 Corporate finance services
bEMERH
- 100 - 100 Inactive
AT
- 100 - 100 Property holding
VEST
- 100 - 100 Money lending
HE
- 100 - 100 Holding of motor vehicles

FE

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###ZRER Q7



—r
an
=~

¥ €102 Hodey [enuuy

ra M RRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILHFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

— continued
Place of
Name of subsidiary incorporation
i PR AR B
Prime Pacific [nvestments British Virgin
Limited Islands
ERELHS
Steppington Holdings Limited  British Virgin
Islands
ERRLHE
Pacific Challenge Securities Hong Kong
Limited
KFEREERARAA Bk
Fortune On Engineering Hong Kong
Limited (note 2)
BRIEARAR Fi
(Wit
Pacific Challenge Futures Hong Kong
Hong Kong Limited
KHEEEMEARAT Ak
Pacific Challenge Management ~ Hong Kong
Services Limited
#i
Grace Field Limited Hong Kong
EHARRA B
Pacific Challenge Secretarial Hong Kong

Services Limited
ATERENERE Eik
BARAH

Class of
shares held
fik
RGER

Ordinary
HiEk
Ordinary
il
Ordinary
gL
Ordinary

LRl

Ordinary
Hilk
Ordinary
gL

Ordinary
L

Ordinary

il

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

BRORARRA

US810,000
10,000 78
HK$60,000,000
60,000,000 ¢
HK$10

10T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 72
HK$2
T

HK$2
WhT

HK$10,000

10,0007

47. B QBB - &

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group Principal activities
ARERELRAR
A%kt IRRH
2013 2012
—E-=f CE-CE
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest  interest
ERED BRER HREG MRES
% % % %
At BAW AN ARH
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
BEER
100 - 100 - Tnvestment holding
BEER
- 100 - 100 Inactive
MR
- - - 00 Property development
VES Y
- 100 - 100 Inactive
N
- 100 - 100 Property holding
VES T
- 100 - 100 Property holding
VS
- 100 - 100 Property holding
kS )
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

— continued
Place of
Name of subsidiary incorporation
2 PEFE HRA LY
Gainventure Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin
[slands
ERELHE
Clever Switch Limited British Virgin
Islands
ERELHE
Get Nice Development Limited ~ Hong Kong
GREREARAF Fik
Joyful Villa Limited British Virgin
Islands
ERELHE
Venturecorp lnvestment British Virgin
Limited Islands
ERELHE
Rich Mount Limited Hong Kong
REHRAH Fik
NobleNet Limited British Virgin
[slands
ERELHE
Superior Capital Assets British Virgin
Limited Islands
ERELHE

Get Nice International Limited ~ Hong Kong

GHRRARA Bi

BE-_T—-"F-A-T-BHLEE
For the year ended 31st March, 2013

47. WEB L BAFHE-&

Issued and Proportion of
Class of fully paid ownership interest
shares held share capital held by the Group Principal activities
i ARERACHER
LY BRORARRA [Zpide IRER
2013 2012
-g-zf 3
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest  interest
ERRR HeRn ARG Wi
% % % %
AL EAR EA BN
Ordinary US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
HEl S B
Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
Lk B BEsR
Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
HiER 1,000,000%7C B
Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
il B RERR
Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
il B RERR
Ordinary HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
Rk 1T VESH
Ordinary USsl1 - 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
HiEl S Bl
Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
HiEl 1£7 BRER
Ordinary HK$20 - 100 - 100 Tnactive
il 20T HERiER

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###ZRER Q7
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For the year ended 31st March, 2013

47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. R D RFIF - &
— continued
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of fully paid ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fi ARERAZHER
WEAREE ARRIEE  ROEH BRORARRA [Zpide IRER
2013 2012
ZE-ZE I Satis

Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest interest
ERRE MRER ANEG MEEa
% % % %
BAL BAK EAN EAH

¢Capitalist.com (Asia) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$19,500,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Limited
EHRE (GH) ARAT Rk L 19,500,000 ¢ RETTER
Dragon Rainbow Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
ERELHE  LEM £ RELER
More Profit International British Virgin Ordinary US$10,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands
EEELHE Bk 100008 RE#R
Great Right Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
REBRARAH ERELHE  LEM £ REGER
Rise Fortune Group Limited ~ British Virgin Ordinary US$50,000 - 100 - 100 Property holding
Islands
ARERFRAR ERELHE AR 50,0003 ¢ WA
Get Nice [nvestment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
ERREARAH Bk L 1 B ER
Group Success International  British Virgin Ordinary USsl1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands
EEELHE  LER B3 Rgrem
Get Nice Entertainment British Virgin Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Limited Islands
RERABE  Lak £ BERER

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&##RBER A



47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

— continued

Place of
Name of subsidiary incorporation
WEAREE AR

Great China Company Limited ~ Macau
KRR A Lo

Grand Waldo Hotel Limited Macau

SHEHARAT um

Carnival Club Limited Macau

FREGHRAH 1

Grand Waldo Outlets Macau
Company Limited

EMLEEHRAA !

A
=

Grand Waldo Entertainment Macau
Limited

ERMREARAT L4

GW Conference and Exhibition ~ Macau

Centre Company Limited

fERTLARAR !

E
=

Class of
shares held
fi%
RGER

Quota
capital

REER

Quota
capital

REER

Quota

capital
RHEA

Quota

capital
[ e
Quota

capital

REER

Quota
capital

REEA

Issued and
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47. WEB L BAFHE-&

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group
ARERELRAR
Bl
2013 2012
ZE-ZE “F-=

Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect

interest  interest interest interest

ERRE MERE Akda Wik

% % % %

Aotk BAL BN ARM

- 05 - 05
- 05 - 05
- 05 - 05
- 58.5 - 58.5
- 05 - 05
- 05 - 05

Principal activities

IRER

Investment property
holding
RARENE

Hotel business
g

Hotel-related
entertainment

business

T RS B

Hotel-related
entertainment

business

R R

Provision of gaming
related marketing
and business
promotion services

RUEZREN
i R
BB

Provision for conference

and exhibition business

ReRIETER
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47. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
— continued
Notes:

(1)

—r
gl
(-}

¥ €102 Hodey [enuuy

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by two
directors of the Company, carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GN available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

The entity was disposed of during the year. The directors
of the Company consider that there was no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements arising from the
disposal of the subsidiary. No separate disclosure was made in

the consolidated financial statements accordingly.
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

On 4th May, 2013, the Group, together with Great
China Company Limited and its subsidiaries and Grand
Waldo Entertainment Limited (collectively the “Disposal
Group”) which carried out the Group’s entire hotel and
entertainment operations in Macau, entered into an assets
purchase agreement with some subsidiaries of Galaxy
Entertainment Group Limited to dispose of hotel complex
and certain assets at a cash consideration of HK$3,250
million (the “Proposed Disposal”). The completion of the
Proposed Disposal is conditional upon the satisfaction or,
if applicable, waiver of the conditions precedent set out
in the circular publicly published on 24th May, 2013.
The Proposed Disposal was approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 11th June, 2013. Upon the completion of
the Proposed Disposal, the Group will cease all operations
and business of the Disposal Group and the operations
and business of the Disposal Group will be presented as
a discontinued operation in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the year in which the disposal

occurs.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31st March,
BE=B=1+—-HILEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“EENFE ZER-RE ZF-—F X8 |ZB-=
HK$ 000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 | HKS$ 000
T T T o T T R FET
(note 1) (note 1) (note 1) (note 1) (note 2)
(Wit1) (Bl (Htzt1) (Htit1) (Bfat2)
RESULTS ¥
Turnover BEH 246,614 271,723 716,623 752,107 543,567
(Loss) profit before taxation Bt fij (k5 18) i 7 (15,876) 261,446 278,393 (227,262) | (114,124)
Taxation i I (24,762) (36,922) (30,517) 19 5,213
(Loss) profit for the year AR (548 Ui F (40,638) 224,524 247,876 (227,243) | (108,911)
As at 31st March,
R=B=+—-8H
160 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
ZEENE ZER-FRE ZF -4 ZF-F | ZBE-Z=F
> HK$ 000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 | HKS$ 000
g RP AR T T R FET
Py (note 1) (note 1) (note 1) (note 1) (note 2)
B (Wit1) (Hit1) (Ht7t1) (Wil (Bfat2)
S
» ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
g
Total assets G R 3,285,404 3,735,516 6,015,966 5,283,096 4,949,234
Total liabilities Bmaf (406,703)  (334,013)  (1,780,723)  (1,359,451)| (1,228,141)
Equity attributable to the Z /NG ZSDN
owners’ of the Company BB A1 1 2,878,701 3,401,503 4,235,243 3,923,645 | 3,721,093
Notes: Mt

(1) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group have been
extracted from the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and statement of financial position as set out in the
Company’s annual report.

(2) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the year
ended 31st March, 2013 have been extracted from the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial

position which are set out on pages 43, 44, 45 and 46 respectively.
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